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 FOREWORD BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CUSTOMER SERVICES 
 
 
Introduction 
 

The purpose of the Annual Accounts is to demonstrate the Council’s stewardship of the public 
funds with which it is entrusted. The financial statements represent the financial position of 
North Lanarkshire Council as at 31 March 2009. They have been compiled in accordance with 
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain. 

 
 
Financial Statements 
 

The Accounts identify two major categories of expenditure, revenue and capital. Revenue 
expenditure represents costs incurred every year providing services in that year whilst capital 
expenditure is the cost of acquiring, constructing and improving the assets of the Council. 

 
Revenue expenditure is incurred in two main funds, the Housing Revenue Account and the 
General Fund. The Housing Revenue Account deals with expenditure on Council house 
management and is funded mainly from rents. It is detailed on page 36. The Income and 
Expenditure Account (on page 9) summarises expenditure and income for all Services of the 
Council. 
 
The Council Tax Income Account (page 38), and the Non-Domestic Rate Income Account 
(page 39) provide further details behind relevant figures in the Income and Expenditure 
Account. 

 
Capital Expenditure is analysed for each Service in the Capital Account (page 34) and the 
assets of the Council at 31 March 2009 are shown in the Balance Sheet (page 11). The 
Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance (page 10) provides the link between the 
Income and Expenditure Statement and the overall impact on the General Fund balance. 

 
Other information provided includes Cash Flow (page 12) and the Group Accounts (pages 41 
to 48). The Group Accounts combine the revenue and balance sheet figures for the Council 
with those of separate companies and associated entities in which the Council has a significant 
interest. 

 
 
General Fund Revenue Account 
 

This Income and Expenditure Account (page 9) covers the day-to-day operational expenditure 
for each service of the Council and details how the money was spent and the sources of 
income. The actual net expenditure for the year was £875.018 million, while Council Tax, 
Non-Domestic Rates and Revenue Support Grant income amounted to £707.576 million 
resulting in a deficit of £167.442 million. The main reason for the deficit is accounting 
adjustments relating to valuation of fixed assets, including council houses, although, overall, 
the total value of fixed assets on the Balance Sheet has increased. The key figure in the 
Accounts is the General Fund balance and these adjustments are removed when calculating 
this balance. When account is taken of those items excluded from the Income and Expenditure 
Account, the overall deficit on the General Fund Account for the year is £6.822 million (page 
10). This compares with a planned deficit of £10.495 million, which reflects Council decisions to 
re-invest balances in one-off priority growth items, to utilise funds set aside for additional 
capital investment in Social Work Children’s Houses and for winter maintenance.  
 
The main reasons for the variance are summarised below: 
 

 £000 
 
 Savings on External Borrowing Costs 1,421 
 
 Service Expenditure Reviews 2008/2009 1,673 
 
 Increase in Local Tax Collection 579
 
 Total Movement against Budget 3,673 
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 ♦ FOREWORD BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CUSTOMER SERVICES 
 
 

The net deficit for the year of £6.822 million has been added to the surplus of £27.016 million 
brought forward from 2007/2008. This has resulted in an overall surplus of £20.194 million (see 
page 10) to be carried forward into 2009/2010. 

 
Taking into account the maintenance of a financial reserve of £8.000 million and the carry 
forward of £8.521 million of committed resources into 2009/2010, there remains an available 

ance of £3.673 million. bal
  

 
ousing Revenue Account H

 
There is a statutory requirement placed upon the Council to maintain a separate Housing 
Revenue Account, as distinct from the General Fund Revenue Account. The Housing financial 
statements are detailed on pages 36 and 37 and deal mainly with the transactions involved in 
managing the Council’s housing stock. The Housing Revenue Account Reserve shows a deficit 
for the year ended 31 March 2009 of £0.135 million which has been deducted from the balance 
brought forward, to enable an earmarked cumulative surplus of £3.963 million to be carried 
forward within the Council’s Revenue Reserves. 

 
 

apital Account C
 

Details of Capital Investment are shown on page 34. Total gross expenditure for Housing and 
Composite Services amounted to £121.222 million. This was funded by income generated from 

s summarised below: - internal and external funds a
    

  million£  
Sale of Council Assets 13.444 
Contributions from Revenue Budgets 20.634 

d Other Income  Capital Grants an 27.339 
ew Borrowings N 59.805

 121.222 
 
Major new projects completed during 2008/2009 included investment in schools of £14.803 
million, in leisure facilities of £18.427 million and in social work of £9.204 million. In addition, 
£11.649 million was invested in the ongoing upgrade of the roads and lighting networks, £3.777 
million invested in waste management programmes and £11.066 million to improve town 
centres and other economic regeneration projects. Investment in council housing amounted to 
£43.428 million. 

 
 

ong Term Borrowing L
 

The Council’s Treasury Strategy for 2008/2009 was agreed at the Policy & Resources 
(Finance) Sub-Committee in March 2008.  This meeting also established the Prudential Code 
indicators, which would facilitate the decision-making processes in support of the Council’s 
capital investment and borrowing strategies. No new long-term borrowing was undertaken 
during the year with short-term investments being used to finance the net borrowing 
requirement. Investment balances were also used to redeem PWLB debt early as part of the 
strategy to manage the Council’s treasury management risk in the light of the turmoil in the 
financial markets. Opportunities were also taken to reschedule debt and were a contributory 

ctor in achieving total savings of £1.421 million in the Council’s external borrowing costs. fa
 
Significant capital investment was initiated through the arrangements available within the 
Prudential System for Capital Finance. The necessary Treasury indicators and safeguards 
were approved and monitored during the year by the Council.  There were major increases to 
both the general services programme and the continued funding of the 30-year housing capital 
rogramme.  p
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 FOREWORD BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CUSTOMER 
SERVICES 

 
 
Cash Flow 
 

The Council’s cash flow (detailed on page 12) increased by £0.462 million during 2008/2009. 
This represents a net cash inflow from revenue activities (£53.134 million), offset by the net 
purchase of fixed assets (£70.042 million), resulting in a net cash outflow before financing of 
£16.908 million. Liquid resources decreased by £42.659 million and debt financing reduced by 
£25.289 million.  
 

 
Pension Assets and Liabilities 
 

 The common position for employers participating in the Strathclyde Pension Fund is that the 
FRS17 calculation (page 14) is based on a snapshot valuation as at 31 March 2009. The 
liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay 
retirement benefits. The total net liability of £135.755m has a substantial impact on the net 
worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet. However, the deficit on the local 
government pension scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining 
working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary. 

 
 
Group Accounts 
 

The Council has a controlling interest in a number of companies and joint ventures, which were 
set up to promote partnerships between the public and private sectors. The summarised group 
financial statements, which incorporate the most significant of these entities, are shown on 
pages 41 to 48. This has been prepared under a full UK GAAP compliant methodology. After 
consolidation, the accounts show a decrease in the reserves and net assets of £440.232 
million or 37%. This is almost exclusively because of the introduction of the Council’s share of 
the combined deficits on the Police and Fire pension schemes. Given that both the Police and 
Firefighters are unfunded schemes, there are no attributable assets. However, the Scottish 
Executive effectively underwrites these liabilities through provision within the Revenue Support 
Grant mechanism including the provision of revenue grants to meet the relative impact on 
employer’s pension costs. 

 
 
Financial Controls and Procedures 

 
Reference is also made to my responsibility for ensuring that proper controls and procedures 
are in place to safeguard the Council’s assets. In this respect, I have included a statement for 
assessing the effectiveness of internal financial controls within the Authority and this is detailed 
on page 50 of this document.  

 
 
Trading Activities 
 

The Council set up six significant trading operations, of which one, Sports and Leisure 
Management, was taken over by North Lanarkshire Leisure Ltd during 2006/2007. As detailed 
on page 32, the trading organisations achieved a combined surplus for the year of £4.176 
million and have recorded at least a break-even position over the last three years of operations 
consistent with their statutory requirements. 
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 FOREWORD BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CUSTOMER 
SERVICES 
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� STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. General

2. Debtors and Creditors

3. Fixed Assets

3.1  Basis of Valuation

Council Dwellings Average open market value less average sales discount
Other Land & Buildings Depreciated replacement cost
Vehicles, Plant & Equipment Historical cost
Infrastructure Assets Historical cost
Community Assets Historical cost  
Investment Properties Open market value
Surplus Assets Open market value
Assets under Construction Historical cost

3.2  Depreciation
The Council employed the following depreciation policy for each class of fixed asset held during the year:

Council Dwellings Depreciated on a straight line basis up to 40 years.
Other Land & Buildings Depreciated on a straight line basis between 25 and 60 years.
Vehicles, Plant & Equipment Depreciated on a straight line basis up to 12 years.
Infrastructure Assets Depreciated on a straight line basis up to 40 years.
Community Assets No depreciation
Investment Properties No depreciation
Surplus Assets (Land) No depreciation
Surplus Assets (Other) Depreciated on a straight line basis between 25 and 60 years.
Assets under Construction No depreciation

3.3  Impairment

3.4  Charges Made to Revenue

3.5  Capital Expenditure
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets has been capitalised on an accruals basis.

3.6  Deferred Charges
Deferred charges in respect of improvement / repair grants awarded during the year are written off in the year.

A combination of depreciation and any relevant impairment is charged to Services for the use of assets based upon their current
values rather than the financing costs of the level of debt outstanding on these assets, following the CIPFA guidelines on Capital
Accounting. The charge made to the Housing Revenue Account is an amount equivalent to the statutory capital financing charges.

The Council recognises the impairment of fixed assets in accordance with FRS11, whereby any reduction in asset value as a result of
changing market conditions or clear consumption of an asset is recognised as an expense to the service revenue account to the
extent that there is no surplus on the Revaluation Reserve.
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The Council does not provide for depreciation on land or community assets with the exception of landfill sites, which are depreciated
over their useful life. No depreciation charge is made within the year for expenditure added during the year.

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (known as the SORP)
issued in 2008 by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts
Advisory Committee (LASAAC). They are also compliant with the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP) as approved by
LASAAC. This is designed to provide a true and fair view of the financial performance and position of the Council and comparative
figures for the previous year are provided.  Exceptions to this are stated in the Policies and Notes to the Accounts.

The Capital and Revenue Accounts have been prepared on an income and expenditure basis, actual or estimated amounts have
been included in respect of known debtors and creditors at 31 March 2009.

It should be noted that only vehicles purchased by the Council either through revenue or capital budgets are reported. Vehicles
employed by the Council through Operational Leases are not included.

The Accounts have been prepared on a historic cost basis, other than changes resulting from the revaluation of certain categories of
fixed assets. The following accounting policies used in their preparation have been reviewed in line with the requirements of Financial
Reporting Standard 18 "Accounting Policies".

The valuation of fixed assets and the basis of the charge made to revenue for fixed assets comply with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Capital Accounting.



u STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4. Redemption of Debt

5. External Interest Payable, Interest Receivable and Investment Income

6. Capital Expenditure Charged to Revenue

7. Government Grant and Other Capital Contibutions Account

8. Financial Instruments

9. Impairment of Financial Assets

(ii) The Council has accounting reserves to account for the restatement of financial instruments to an amortised cost or fair value
basis. The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account is a balancing account to allow for differences in statutory requirements and
proper accounting practice for financial liabilities, loans and receivables. The Available–for–Sale Financial Instruments Reserve is
used as a store of gains/losses on revaluation of investments held at fair value within the Balance Sheet.  

In determining impairment of its loans and receivables, the Council adopts a strict cohort rating criteria for investment counterparties.
Therefore, it does not provide for any impairment losses from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits with
banks and building societies. For total debtor balances excluding statutory debts, the Council generally makes a 100% allowance for
those debts that are more than 1 year old and a 50% allowance for debts which are greater than 6 months but less than 1 year. Within
this criteria, other factors may determine this methodology is not appropriate and the amount provided for will be adjusted accordingly
to reflect the specific nature of the debt being considered.

Government grants and other capital contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis. Income has been credited in respect of
revenue grants to the appropriate revenue account. Capital Grants are credited initially to the Government Grants Deferred Account.  

(i) Financial Liabilities (borrowings repayable) and Loans and Receivables (investments) are carried at amortised cost in the Balance
Sheet. Ignoring impairment, this represents the carrying amount on initial recognition plus the interest taken to the Income and
Expenditure Account less the cash paid or received for both interest and principal.

A Loans Fund has been established and all loans raised are paid into this Fund. Advances are made to Services to finance capital
expenditure and these are repaid by application of the annuity method over the maximum permitted redemption periods for different
asset types permitted by Scottish Office Circular 29/1975.

Capital expenditure charged to revenue is incorporated in the Capital Account as a fixed asset, with a corresponding credit to the
Capital Adjustment Account, representing the setting aside of revenue resources.

External interest has been calculated and charged to the Income and Expenditure Account on an amortised cost basis over the life of
the loan with the interest expense being recognised on a level yield / interest rate basis. For the majority of loans, this represents the
interest amount payable for the year per the loan agreement. For those loans with a stepped interest rate feature, this results in a
difference between the coupon rate and the amount charged to the Income and Expenditure Account. For interest payable on all loans
held at 31 March 2007, the net charge to the General Fund has been adjusted to reverse this differential. This is in line with statutory
guidance issued by the Scottish Government (Section 12 (2)b of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003). The Financial
Instruments Adjustment Account (FIAA) has been credited / debited with the difference between the actual amount due in the year
and the effective interest rate over the life of the loan.

In accordance with current legislation, the Council's period of investment of surplus balances does not exceed 364 days and the
amount disclosed for interest receivable and investment income is based on the amount receivable per the contractual terms of the
financial asset.

Government grants have been recognised when the conditions for their receipt have been complied with and there is reasonable
assurance that the grant or contribution will be received.
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The schedule of Premiums and Discounts held at 31 March 2007 was transferred to the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account on
1 April 2007 and have been designated as statutory premiums and discounts under statutory guidance issued by the Scottish
Government (Section 12 (2)b of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003) . This schedule is used to determine the annual charge
to the General Fund and reflects annual charging schedules held at 31 March 2007 with all charges being managed by movements to
and from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account and the Statement of Movement in the General Fund Balance.

From 1 April 2007 costs associated with debt restructuring (Premiums and Discounts) are charged directly to the Income &
Expenditure Account in the year of extinguishment in accordance with accounting regulations. In line with the statutory guidance
stated above, all premiums and discounts arising from an extinguishment have been deferred and charged to the General Fund over a 
period greater than one year. Any discount or premium incurred for restructuring exercises deemed a modification has been reflected
in the carrying amount of the loan.



� STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

10. Legal Charges over Properties

11. Leases

12. Stocks and Work-in-Progress

13. Central Support Services

��� Staff time spent on various services.
��� Payroll, superannuation and personnel - numbers of FTE employees.
��� Creditors and Debtors - number of transactions.
��� Building costs - floor areas.
��� Telephone service - number of extensions and cost of outgoing calls.

14. Capital Receipts

15. Provisions and Reserves

16. Capital Adjustment Account

17. Government Grant and Other Capital Contributions Deferred Account

18. Insurance Fund 
The Council operates an Insurance Fund. See note 14 to the Accounts for further information.

19. Revaluation Reserve

20. Contributions Unapplied Account

21. Gain / (Loss) on Disposal of Assets 

7

The Capital Adjustment Account represents timing differences between the amount of the historical cost of fixed assets that has been
consumed and the amount that has been financed in accordance with statutory requirements.

The Revaluation Reserve records the accumulated gains on fixed assets held by the Council arising from increases in value, as a
result of inflation or other factors. Whilst gains arising from revaluations increase the net worth of the Council they would only result in
an increase in spending power if the relevant assets were sold and capital receipts generated.

This Reserve is used to hold the proceeds of capital grants and contributions that are not immediately required to finance relevant
capital expenditure.

Where the acquisition of a fixed asset is financed either wholly or in part by a government grant or other capital contribution, the
amount of grant or contribution is credited initially to the Government Grant and Other Capital Contributions Deferred Account.
Amounts are subsequently released to revenue over the useful life of the asset to match the depreciation being charged. Where the
grant or contribution cannot be matched to relevant capital expenditure, the funds are held in the Contributions Unapplied Account
pending release to offset the relevant capital spend.

The direct costs of Central Support Services have been allocated in full to user Services and capital accounts on the following basis:

The regulations covering capital receipts generated from the sale of assets allow the proceeds to be used to fund capital expenditure
and are available to support further capital investment. 

Provisions are made for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount that have been incurred, with the value of each provision being based
upon the Council's obligations arising from past events, the probability that a transfer of economic benefit will take place, and a
reasonable estimate of the obligation.

As part of its service provision, the Council may decide to provide a rechargeable service to clients, with the recovery of the costs
incurred being deferred by virtue of placing a charging order on the recipient’s property. Due to the legal nature of such arrangements
and on the grounds of materiality, the Council does not account for the recovery of such sums due until they are realised, i.e. when
the charging order is enforced.  

The rentals for all leases classified as operating or finance leases have been charged to the appropriate revenue account as they
become payable.

Stocks and Work-in-Progress have been valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making due allowance for obsolete
and slow moving items.

The Council operates a Repairs & Renewals Fund which is earmarked for improvements to Council facilities.

Assets held within the Housing Revenue Account are revalued each year at market value less sales discount resulting in no gain or
loss on disposal. A net gain or loss on the disposal of all other tangible assets is shown in the Income and Expenditure Account
depending upon the level of receipt against the net book value of the asset written out. To comply with statutory / proper practices this
gain or loss is excluded when determining the General Fund surplus or deficit for the year within the Statement of Movement on the
General Fund Balance. 

The indirect costs of corporate management and democratic representation have been allocated to Corporate and Democratic Core
which is differentiated within the Income and Expenditure Account.

Rental payments under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of outstanding obligation, with
the finance charge being allocated and charged to revenue over the term of the lease.

Rental payments under finance leases are charged to Supplies and Services.



� STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

22. Pension Reserve

23. Education Public Private Partnership

24. Group Accounts 
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The Pension Reserve arises from the FRS17 accounting disclosure requirements and represents the difference between accounting
for pensions and the funding of pension costs from taxation in line with the statutory requirements. It is equal to the reported Pension
Asset which recognises the Council's share of the net funding position on the Strathclyde Pension Fund as projected at 31 March
2009.

The accounting treatment of the Public Private Partnership for the provision of school buildings, maintenance and other facilities is in
accordance with FRS5 "Reporting the Substance of Transactions" and Treasury guidance.

Under the 2008 SORP the Council has adopted the amendment to FRS 17, Retirement Benefits. As a result, quoted securities held
as assets by the Strathclyde Pension Fund in the defined benefit scheme are valued at bid price rather than mid-market value. Based
on 31 December 2008 figures, the valuation of the Fund's assets will be approximately 0.13% lower on the fair value (i.e. bid) basis
than on the mid-market value basis. No prior year adjustment has been deemed necessary.

The Council prepares Group Accounts which consolidate the financial position in respect of a number of subsidiaries, associates and
joint venture arrangements.

When the final school opened in October 2008, the depreciated net replacement cost of the schools, which will be returned to the
Council at the end of the contract, was calculated. This sum requires to be recognised in the Balance Sheet over the life of the
contract. An annual charge was credited to the Income and Expenditure Account in 2008/2009, matched by an appropriation to the
Capital Adjustment Account. The charge will be added to annually, over the time span of the contract, with the total being transferred
to fixed assets at the end of the contract.

No buildings or other assets have been transferred to Transform Schools (North Lanarkshire) Ltd. and, therefore, there is no
requirement to show a deferred consideration within the  Balance Sheet.



u Income and Expenditure Account for the Year ended 31 March 2009

Net Net
Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure
2007/2008       Service Note 2008/2009 2008/2009 2008/2009

£000 £000 £000 £000

11,910 Central Services 23,673           8,614             15,059

4,964 Corporate and Democratic Core 6,036             -                     6,036

50,679 Cultural & Related Services 57,233           5,589             51,644

307,793 Education Services 389,527         13,770           375,757

30,602 Environmental Services 48,599           6,005             42,594

15,195 Fire & Rescue Services 16,275           -                     16,275

1,779 General Fund Housing Services 132,119         126,863         5,256

(6,670) Housing Revenue Account 159,653         96,582           63,071

3,408 Non Distributed Costs 1,592             -                     1,592

6,882 Planning & Development Services 59,665           16,574           43,091

30,458 Police Force 32,713           82                  32,631

31,946 Roads & Transport Services 41,557           3,248             38,309

124,351 Social Work Services 197,781         34,228           163,553

613,297 Net Cost of Services 1,166,423 311,555 854,868

(442) Public/Private Partnership Dividends -                     257                (257)

(161) Surpluses on Trading Undertakings not included 2,571             2,877             (306)
in Net Cost of Services

27,627 Interest Payable 27,240           -                     27,240

(3,929) Interest and Investment Income -                     4,404             (4,404)

(10,329)    (Note 2 ) -                     1,859             (1,859)

(934) (Gain) or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets -                     264                (264)

625,129 Net Operating Expenditure 1,196,234 321,216 875,018

380,090 Revenue Support Grant -                     462,596         462,596

118,050 Non-Domestic Rates -                     124,196         124,196

119,324 Council Tax -                     120,784         120,784

7,665 1,196,234 1,028,792 167,442

Pension Interest Cost and Expected Return on
Pension Assets

Income from taxation and general government grants
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(Surplus) / Deficit for the year transferred to the 
General Fund



u Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance for the Year ended 31 March 2009

Net Net
Expenditure Expenditure
2007/2008 2008/2009

£000 £000

7,665 Transfer of the (surplus) / deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account for the year 167,442

Less:

(18,410) (160,620)

(10,745) 6,822

(16,271) Balance on General Fund brought forward (27,016)

(27,016) Surplus on General Fund carried forward (20,194)

u Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses for the Year ended 31 March 2009

2007/2008 2008/2009
£000 £000

7,665 (Surplus) / Deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account for the year 167,442

25,021 (Gain) / Loss arising from the revaluation of fixed assets (231,331)

(110,663) Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on pension assets and liabilities 149,326

28,763                Any other (Gains) / Losses required to be included -                     

(49,214) Total Recognised (gains) / losses for the year 85,437
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This statement shows how the deficit on the Council's Income and Expenditure Account for the year reconciles to the surplus
for the year on the General Fund. Note 3 to the statement of accounts explains the significance of the General Fund and this
reconciliation statement. 

Net additional amount required by statute or non-statutory proper practices to be taken 
into account when determining the surplus or deficit on the General Fund for the year 
(Note 3) 

This statement (STRGL) brings together all the gains and losses of the Council for the year. The gain on revaluation of fixed
assets (mostly land and buildings) and actuarial movements on pension assets and liabilities represent gains and losses from
re-measurement (broadly revaluing) of certain assets and liabilities to current value at the balance sheet date and do not
contribute to the resources that can be used to fund the Council's services. 

General Fund (Surplus) / Deficit for the year



Balance Sheet as at 31  March 2009

2007/2008 Note 2008/2009 2008/2009
£000 Reference £000 £000

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
OPERATIONAL ASSETS

747,215 Council Dwellings note 5 749,478
678,817 Other Land and Buildings note 5 792,702
35,707 Vehicles, Plant and Equipment note 5 39,724

166,855 Infrastructure Assets note 5 181,341
26,292 Community Assets note 5 24,213 1,787,458

NON-OPERATIONAL ASSETS
107,354 Investment Property note 5 76,915
63,614 Surplus Assets held for Disposal note 5 57,231
2,273 Assets under Construction note 5 10,674 144,820

1,828,127 1,932,278

-                   LONG-TERM DEBTORS note 23 2,703

1,828,127 TOTAL LONG-TERM ASSETS 1,934,981

CURRENT ASSETS
831 Stores and Materials 1,026

67,447 Debtors (net of Bad Debt Provision : Note 8) note 7 53,231
72,989 Short Term Investments 30,440
1,454 Cash in Hand 1,245

142,721 85,942

CURRENT LIABILITIES
(19,470) Borrowing repayable on demand or within 12 months note 13 (34,021)

(102,097) Creditors note 10 (106,766)
(11,381) Bank Overdraft (10,710)

(132,948) (151,497)

1,837,900 TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,869,426

LONG & MEDIUM TERM LOANS
(432,553) Borrowing repayable after 12 months note 13 (392,990)

DEFERRED LIABILITIES
(165) Outstanding Obligations on Finance Leases note 12 (123)

PROVISIONS
(12,333) Equal Pay Provision note 9 (10,691)

(428) Provision for Tax on Social Work Incentive Scheme note 9 (159)
(10,850)

(96,611) (122,496)

(13,775) CONTRIBUTIONS UNAPPLIED ACCOUNT (6,986)

3,628 note 2 (135,755)

1,285,663 TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES 1,200,226

REPRESENTED BY:
47,814          Revaluation Reserve 226,288

1,244,546 Capital Adjustment Account 1,122,474
-                   Available-for-Sale Financial Instruments Reserve -                   

(50,139) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (48,495)
-                   Capital Receipts Reserve -                   

3,628 Pension Reserve note 2 (135,755)
8,622 Insurance Fund note 14 8,673

78 Repairs & Renewals Fund 2,884
27,016 General Fund Reserve 20,194
4,098 Housing Revenue Account Reserve 3,963

1,285,663 NET WORTH 1,200,226

The unaudited accounts were issued on 29 June 2009 and the audited accounts were authorised for issue on 23 September 2009.

Alistair Crichton,  CPFA
Executive Director of Finance and Customer Services

ASSET / (LIABILITY) RELATING TO DEFINED PENSION SCHEME
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GOVERNMENT GRANT AND OTHER CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
DEFERRED ACCOUNT



u CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2007/2008 Note 2008/2009 2008/2009
£000 £000 £000

REVENUE ACTIVITIES

Cash Outflows:
(430,737) Cash paid to and on behalf of employees (448,036)
(310,418) Other operating cash payments (337,137)
(26,951) Housing Benefit paid out (30,093)
(53,020) Precepts paid (56,654)

(821,126) (871,920)
Cash Inflows:

44,626 Rents (after rebates) 45,041
96,588 Council Tax receipts 95,611
27,888 National non-domestic rate receipts from national pool 27,730
91,921 Non-domestic rate receipts 93,713

380,090 Revenue Support Grant note 34 462,596
84,132 DWP grants for benefits note 34 86,717
24,643 Council Tax Benefits note 34 24,405
82,258 Other government grants note 34 39,418
20,769 Cash received from goods and services 24,948
43,017 Other operating cash receipts 46,350

895,932 946,529
Dividends from Joint Ventures & Associates

Cash Inflows:
436 Dividends Received 445

Returns on Investments and Servicing of Finance
Cash Outflows:

(26,244) Interest Paid (26,302)
(9) Interest element of finance lease rental payments (9)

Cash Inflows:
3,780 Interest Received 4,391

(22,473) (21,920)

52,769 Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from Revenue Activities note 31 53,134

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

Cash Outflows:
(105,005) Purchase of fixed assets (114,502)

Cash Inflows:
24,827 Sale of fixed assets 13,443
24,990 Capital grants received 30,763
18,134 Other capital cash receipts 254
67,951 44,460

(37,054) Net Cash Inflow / ( Outflow ) from Capital Activities (70,042)

15,715 Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) before Financing note 33 (16,908)

Management of Liquid Resources
2,669 Net (increase)/decrease  in short term deposits 42,600

32 Net (increase)/decrease  in other liquid resources 59 42,659
2,701

Financing
Cash Outflows:

(42,530) Repayments of amounts borrowed (38,641)
(41) Capital element of finance lease rental payments (41)

(42,571) (38,682)
Cash Inflows

15,330 New loans raised 13,393

(27,241) Net Cash Inflow / ( Outflow ) from Financing (25,289)

(8,825) Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash note 32 462
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This statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with third parties both for day-to-day revenue
transactions and those of a longer-term capital nature. For the purpose of this statement, cash is defined as cash-in-hand and
deposits repayable on demand less overdrafts repayable on demand.
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1 Statement of Accounts

2 Pension Costs

2.1 Participation in Pension Schemes

u

u

2.2

2007/2008 2008/2009
£000 £000

Net Cost of Services 32,513 20,755
current service cost 33,479 23,381
unfunded benefits (4,347) (4,478)
past service costs 2,402 217
curtailments 979 1,635

Net Operating Expenditure (10,329) (1,859)
expected return on assets in the scheme (68,464) (66,968)
interest costs on pensions 58,135 65,109

Net Charge to the Income and Expenditure Account 22,184 18,896

Less: Employers' Contribution Payable to the Scheme (27,306) (28,839)

(5,122) (9,943)

2.3
The Council's assets and liabilities amounted to:

31 March 2008 31 March 2009
£000 £000

Equities 682,877 537,192
(72.6%) (73.0%)

Bonds 135,397 117,741
(14.4%) (16.0%)

Property 92,561 58,870
(9.8%) (8.0%)

Cash 29,755 22,076
(3.2%) (3.0%)

Total Share of Assets in Strathclyde Pension Fund 940,590 735,879
(shown at fair value)
Estimated Liability in Strathclyde Pension Fund 936,962 871,634
(shown at present value)
Net Asset (Liability) in Strathclyde Pension Fund 3,628 (135,755)

The unaudited accounts were issued on 29 June 2009 and the audited accounts were authorised for issue on 23 September 2009. Events
after the Balance Sheet date (31 March 2009) have been considered up to the authorised for issue date.

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has to pay retirement benefits. The total net liability of £135.755m has a
substantial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet. However, the deficit on the local government pension
scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary.

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Council in the year to 31 March 2010 is
£29.649m. This is based on a level of contributions set at 290% of employee pension contributions (2008/2009 was 280%).

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned by employees, rather than when
the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge required to be made against Council Tax is based on the cash payable
in the year. Consequently the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund (Note 3).
The following transactions have been made in the Income and Expenditure Account and Statement of Movement on the General Fund
Balance during the year:

In addition to the recognised gains and losses included in the Income and Expenditure Account, a net actuarial loss of £149.326m is
included in the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses. The cumulative amount of actuarial gains recognised in the Statement
of Total Recognised Gains and Losses is £12.083m.

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Council offers retirement benefits. Although
these benefits will not actually be payable until an employee retires, the Council has to disclose a commitment to make the payments at
the time that employees earn their future entitlement. The Council participates in two pension schemes:

Pension Assets and Liabilities

Amount by which FRS17 based pensions are different from the 
contributions under the pension scheme regulations (note 3)

The Strathclyde Pension Fund Local Government Pension Scheme is administered by Glasgow City Council in accordance with the
Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) (Administration) Regulations 1998. This is a defined benefit scheme, meaning that the
Council and employees pay contributions into the fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment
assets.

Transactions relating to retirement benefits
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The Teachers' Pension Scheme is currently administered by the Scottish Public Pensions Agency, an Executive Agency of the Scottish
Government. It provides teachers with defined benefits upon their retirement, and the Council contributes towards the costs by making
contributions based on a percentage of members' pensionable salaries. However, as the Scheme is not able to identify each body's
share of the underlying liabilities on a consistent and reasonable basis, the pension costs are accounted for as if it were a defined
contribution scheme.
In 2008/2009, the Council paid £17.909m to the Scottish Public Pensions Agency in respect of teachers' retirement benefits,
representing 13.0% of pensionable pay. The figures for 2007/2008 were £17.459m and 13.0%. In addition, the Council is responsible for
all pension payments relating to added years it has awarded.  In 2008/2009, these amounted to £2.870m (£2.650m for 2007/2008).
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2 Pension Costs

2.3

2007/2008 2008/2009
£000 £000

1 April (1,066,421) (936,962)

Current service cost (33,479) (23,381)
Interest cost (58,135) (65,109)
Contributions by scheme participants (9,752) (10,088)
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) 208,201 129,061
Benefits paid 26,005 36,697
Curtailments and Settlements (979) (1,635)
Past service costs (2,402) (217)

31 March (936,962) (871,634)

2007/2008 2008/2009
£000 £000

1 April 954,264 940,590

Expected return on assets 68,464 66,968
Contributions by scheme participants 9,752 10,088
Contributions by the Employer 27,306 28,839
Contributions in respect of Unfunded Benefits 4,347 4,478
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) (97,538) (278,387)
Benefits Paid (26,005) (36,697)

31 March 940,590 735,879

2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fair Value of Employer Assets 694,680 890,551 954,264 940,590 735,879
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation (927,771) (1,091,294) (1,066,421) (936,962) (871,634)
Surplus / (Deficit) (233,091) (200,743) (112,157) 3,628 (135,755)

23,403 140,605 (10,478) (97,538) (278,387)
(Shown as a percentage of assets) 3.4% 15.8% (1.1%) (10.4%) (37.8%)

(5,500) 27,563 (398) (278) 66,457
(Shown as a percentage of liabilities) 0.6% (2.5%) 0.0% 0.0% (7.6%)

The actual return on scheme assets for the period from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 was a reduction of 20.8%.

The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:
Strathclyde 

Pension 
Fund

Strathclyde 
Pension 

Fund
31 March 2008 31 March 2009

Long-term expected rate of return of assets in the scheme:
7.7% 7.0%

Bonds 5.7% 5.4%
Property 5.7% 4.9%
Cash 4.8% 4.0%

Rate of inflation 3.6% 3.1%
Rate of increase in salaries 5.1% 4.6%
Expected Return on Assets 7.1% 6.5%
Discount Rate 6.9% 6.9%

Mortality assumptions
Average future life expectancy (in years) at the valuation date:

Men 19.3 20.3
Women 22.3 23.2

Men 20.3 21.7
Women 23.3 24.6

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Assumption to assess 
funding position at                 

31 March 2005

Assumption to assess 
funding position at              

31 March 2008

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation:

Pension Assets and Liabilities

Reconciliation of fair value of employer assets:
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Experience Gains / (Losses) on Liabilities

Experience Gains / (Losses) on Assets

Scheme history

Equity investments

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

The total bid value of the Fund's assets as at 31 March 2009 is estimated to be £7,536m. The expected return on assets is based on the
long-term future expected investment return for each asset class as at the beginning of the period (i.e. with a valuation as at 31 March
2008).

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in
future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The Strathclyde Pension Fund assets and liabilities have
been assessed by Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries. Estimates for the Fund are based on the latest full valuation of
the scheme as at 31 March 2008.
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3

2007/2008 2008/09 2008/09
£000 £000 £000

(75,337) Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets (235,223)

7,456 8,243

1,144       Movements recognised under statutory provisions relating to Financial Instruments 1,644

-               Capital Element of PPP Unitary Payment 2,703

934 Net gain / (loss) on sale of fixed assets 264

(26,531) (23,374)
(245,743)

(92,334)

31,653 33,317

26,031 Loans fund redemption of debt 28,450

15,675 Capital expenditure funded from current revenue 20,634 82,401
73,359

992 (135)

(427) 2,857
2,722

565

(18,410) (160,620)

4 Movement in Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000
Revaluation Reserve 47,814 185,304 (6,830) 226,288
Capital Adjustment Account 1,244,546 46,027 (168,099) 1,122,474
Capital Receipts Reserve -              -                -              -              
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (50,139) -                1,644 (48,495)
Pension Reserve 3,628 (149,326) 9,943 (135,755)
Insurance Fund 8,622 -                51 8,673
Repairs & Renewals Fund 78 -                2,806 2,884
General Fund Reserve 27,016 (167,442) 160,620 20,194
Housing Revenue Account Reserve 4,098 -                (135) 3,963
TOTAL RESERVES 1,285,663 (85,437) -              1,200,226
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Balance 
Brought 
Forward

Gains / 
(Loss) for 
the Year

Transfers 
between 
Reserves

Balance 
Carried 
Forward

Reconciliation of the Deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account to the Deficit for the Year on the General Fund
The deficit for the year on the General Fund was £160.620m less than the deficit of £167.442m on the Income and Expenditure Account.
This is explained as follows:

The Income and Expenditure Account discloses the income received and expenditure incurred in operating the Council's services for the
year and is equivalent to the Profit and Loss of a business. Income and expenditure and the resulting surplus or deficit for the year are
measures using essentially the same accounting conventions that most large UK businesses are required to use in preparing their
audited annual financial statements. Accountants refer to such accounting conventions as UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practices
(UK GAAP). This UK GAAP based approach is codified in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (known as the SORP),
which local authorities are required by statute to observe when preparing their annual statement of accounts.

Amounts not included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required to be
included by statute when determining the General Fund surplus or deficit for the year

However, the items that the Council are required to credit and debit to its General Fund when determining the surplus or deficit for the
year on its General Fund are laid down in statute and non-statutory "proper practices" rather than being UK GAAP based. While the
amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account and in the General Fund are largely the same, there are a number of
differences. For example, a charge for depreciation of fixed assets must be charged to the Income and Expenditure Account in
accordance with the SORP but depreciation must be excluded from the General Fund in accordance with statute. 

The surplus or deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account measures the Council's operating financial performance for the year.
However, the surplus or deficit on the General Fund is the key measure of financial performance since it indicates whether the Council
added to or drew on its General Fund Balances during the year. This in turn affects the amount of the General Fund Balance that the
Council can take into account when determining its spending plans on Council Tax financed services for the following year and in
determining the Council's decision about the amount of Council Tax income it should budget to raise from its Council Tax payers.

The table below gives a detailed breakdown of the differences between the income and expenditure included in the Council's Income and
Expenditure Account in accordance with the SORP, and the amounts that statute and non-statutory proper practice required the Council
to debit and credit to the General Fund Balance.

Amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required by statute to
be excluded when determining the General Fund surplus or deficit for the year

Transfers made at the discretion of the Council to or from reserves that have been
earmarked for specific purposes

Employer's contributions payable to the pension fund and retirement benefits payable 
direct to pensioners

This statement shows the movement on the Council's reserves, it distinguishes between movements resulting from the gains and losses
for the year and movements resulting from transfers between reserves, most of which the Council is required to make in accordance with
statute or non-statutory proper practice.

Amount by which the General Fund needs to be debited or credited to comply with
statutory and non-statutory proper practices for the year

Government Grant and Other Capital Contributions Deferred credits released to match 
depreciation

Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with FRS 17.

Transfers to or from the General Fund that are required by statute to be taken into
account when determining the General Fund surplus or deficit for the year

Statutorily required transfer of the surplus for the year on the Housing Revenue Account
to Revenue Reserves earmarked for use by the Housing Revenue Account
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5 Fixed Assets

5.1 Movements in Fixed Assets

Council 
Dwellings

Other Land 
and 

Buildings

Vehicles 
Plant and 

Equipment
Infrastructure

Community 
Assets

Investment 
Property

Surplus 
Assets

Assets 
Under 

Construction

TOTAL

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation At 
1 April 2008 765,384 766,660 72,557 222,601 26,292 107,838 63,614 2,273 2,027,219

Expenditure 43,428     26,785     10,224     21,958        1,539        6,722        -               10,566      121,222      
Disposals (11,833) (5,833) (7,408) -                  -                (50) (1,460) -                (26,584)
Revaluations (29,397) 47,394     (7) (71) (3,618) (33,015) (4,923) -                (23,637)
Transfer from AUC -               2,165       -               -                  -                -                -               (2,165) -                   
Reclassifications -               3,529       (21) 1,035          -                (4,580) -               -                (37)

At 31 March 2009 767,582 840,700 75,345 245,523 24,213 76,915 57,231 10,674 2,098,183

Less:
Depreciation At 1 
April 2008 18,169     87,843     36,850     55,746        -                484           -               -                199,092      
Charge for Year 18,104     28,918     6,167       8,438          -                5               -               -                61,632         
Disposals (201) (5,826) (7,378) -                  -                -                -               -                (13,405)
Revaluations (17,968) (63,401) -               -                  -                (8) -               -                (81,377)
Reclassifications -               464          (18) (2) -                (481) -               -                (37)

At 31 March 2009 18,104     47,998     35,621     64,182           - -                -                       - 165,905      

Net Book Value as at 
1 April 2008 747,215   678,817   35,707     166,855      26,292      107,354    63,614     2,273        1,828,127   

Net Book Value as at 
31 March 2009 749,478   792,702   39,724     181,341      24,213      76,915      57,231     10,674      1,932,278   

5.2 Valuation of Fixed Assets

Council 
Dwellings

Other Land 
and 

Buildings

Vehicles 
Plant and 

Equipment

Infrastructure Community 
Assets

Investment 
Properties

Surplus 
Assets

Assets 
Under 

Construction

TOTAL

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Value at historical cost 771,187   - 39,724     181,341      24,213      - - 10,674      1,027,139   

New Certified Valuation 
included in Balance 
Sheet:
2008/2009 (21,709) 590,471   -               -                  -                2,419        -               -                571,181      
2007/2008 -               22,600     -               -                  -                28,295      57,231     -                108,126      
2006/2007 -               52,621     -               -                  -                6,926        -               -                59,547         
2005/2006 -               106,230   -               -                  -                3,363        -               -                109,593      
2004/2005 -               20,780     -               -                  -                35,912      -               -                56,692         

Total 749,478   792,702   39,724     181,341      24,213      76,915      57,231     10,674      1,932,278   

Year 1: 2008/2009 Education Properties.

Year 2: 2009/2010 Social Work, Office Buildings, Depots and Industrial Properties.

Year 3: 2010/2011 Leisure Properties.

Year 4: 2011/2012

Year 5: 2012/2013 Planning and Development Properties, Car Parks and Miscellaneous.

The movement in fixed assets during 2008/2009 is summarised below:

OPERATIONAL ASSETS NON-OPERATIONAL ASSETS

Leisure Properties and Open Spaces.
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Further details in relation to the expenditure on fixed assets and how this is financed is contained within the detailed capital expenditure
statements on page 34.

The following statement shows the progress of the Council's 5 year rolling programme for the revaluation of fixed assets. The properties
were valued by the Council's Head of Property Services, Ian Nisbet BSc, BA, MBA, FRICS in accordance with the Statement of Asset
Valuation Practice and Guidance Notes of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.

The five year rolling valuation programme as determined by the Head of Property Services, is structured on the following outline :

2008/2009 saw the start of the Council's third five year revaluation cycle.  The new cycle commenced with education properties.
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5 Fixed Assets

5.3 Information on Assets Held
The following statement shows the number of Fixed Assets owned by the Council:

37,990 Council Dwellings and Other HRA Properties 37,571

Operational Buildings
2 Concert Hall & Theatres 2

14 Other Housing Properties 14
26 Cemetery Buildings 27
82 Depots and Workshops 40

4 Museums / Galleries 4
222 Community / Day Centres 193

61 Sports Centres and Pools 59
22 Libraries 23

537 School Buildings 327
63 Office Buildings 63
33 Parks and Amenity Properties 33
88 Miscellaneous 49

Infrastructure Assets
1,541 Roads (kilometres) 1,541

558 Bridges and Structures 558
55,300 Lighting Units 55,298

2,403 Illuminated Bollards 2,403
178 Traffic Light Sets 188

Operational Equipment
383 Vehicles 178

99 Mechanical Plant > £5,000 39
3,849 Computer Workstations 6,000

Community Assets
2,699 Parks and Open Spaces (hectares) 2,699

114 Works of Art/Museum Exhibits 114
7 Cemeteries 7

Non Operational Property
1,057 Investment / Commercial Properties 1,035

6 Leased Assets Rental Income

No assets are currently held by the Council for the purpose of letting under finance leases.

7 Debtors

2007/2008 2008/2009 2008/09
£000 £000 £000

Arrears of Council Tax
55,143 Council Tax 60,085

(51,003) less Provision (53,897) 6,188

29,872 Community Charge 29,717
(29,872) less Provision (29,717) -                        

32,959 Non-Domestic Rates 35,563
(31,237) less Provision (33,684) 1,879

House Rents etc. Receivable
4,348 Rents Receivable 4,829

(1,345) less Provision (2,046) 2,783

11,425 Central Government Grants 3,672

External Debtor Accounts due
18,173 External Debtors Due 14,642
(3,211) less Provision (3,414) 11,228

7,864 VAT Recoverable 9,426

3,833 Leasing and Other Prepayments 3,273

20,498 Other Income Due 14,782

67,447 TOTAL DEBTORS 53,231
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The Debtors balance consists primarily of debts in respect of Council Tax, Non-Domestic Rates, External Debtors Accounts and VAT
recoverable. This can be summarised as follows:

The Council received income of £7.576m in 2008/2009 (£7.418m in 2007/2008) from operating leases related to land and buildings.
The gross value of these leased assets was £78.739m, with accumulated depreciation amounting to £1.155m.

Number as at 31 
March 2009

During 2008/09 a review of the asset register resulted in the reclassification of some assets and the removal of obsolete assets 
with £nil net book value.

Number as at 31 
March 2008
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8 Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

Sundry Debtors:

£000 £000 £000
Council Tax 46,125              7,772                53,897              
Community Charge 26,892              2,825                29,717              
Non-Domestic Rates 30,378              3,306                33,684              
Housing - Current and Former Tenants Arrears 2,046                - 2,046                
Other Income 3,414                - 3,414                

TOTAL 108,855            13,903              122,758            

9 Provisions

10 Creditors

2007/2008 2008/2009
£000 £000

6,637                Payroll Costs due 5,584                
37,672              Goods Received not invoiced at 31 March 40,838              
11,396              Tax, Pension and National Insurance Payovers 10,162              
46,392              Sundry Creditors 50,182              

102,097            TOTAL CREDITORS 106,766            

11 Operational Leases

£000 £000

Leases expiring in the 2009/2010 financial year 99                     429                   
Leases expiring in 2-5 years 1,025                3,384                
Leases expiring in more than 5 years 1,350                447                   

2,474                4,260                

12 Finance Leases

The following values of assets are held under finance lease by the Council, accounted for as part of Tangible Fixed Assets:

£000 £000
Value as at 1 April 2008 165                      -
Additions during the year                      -
Depreciation (42)                      -
Value as at 31 March 2009 123                                        -
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The Creditors balance consists primarily of amounts due in respect of payroll costs, payovers to HMRC and Strathclyde Pension Fund
and other sundry creditors. This can be summarised as follows:

In addition, there is an ongoing commitment to meet the income tax liability in respect of the Council's Social Work Incentive Scheme and
the balance of this Provision stands at £0.159m as at 31 March 2009 (£0.428m at 31 March 2008). The movement in the year is in
respect of payments to account and a re-assessment of the potential liability.

The Council has a number of operational leasing arrangements which deliver housing improvements, vehicles and equipment such as
wheeled bins and IT hardware. The total costs in 2008/2009 were £7.675m (£7.761m in 2007/2008) which have been charged to the
appropriate revenue account.

The Council also has a staff car leasing scheme which falls into the operating lease category. The net cost to the Council of £0.694m
(£1.196m in 2007/2008) was allocated to the appropriate revenue account.

The Council is committed to making payments of £6.734m under operational leases in the 2009/2010 financial year, comprising the
following elements:

gas central heating 
and tower block 

overcladding
vehicles and 
equipment

The Council had initiated a number of finance leases during 2005/2006 in relation to gas central heating and tower block overcladding.
The rental payments in 2008/2009 were £0.051m. These were charged to the Income and Expenditure Account as £0.042m interest
payable and £0.009m relating to the write-down of obligations to the lessor (debited as part of the appropriation to the Capital Adjustment
Account).

gas central heating 
and tower block 

overcladding
vehicles and 
equipment

The Council has made cumulative provision within the disclosed debtors position for the anticipated ultimate collection of income due in
respect of its major direct income streams, which can be summarised as follows:

The Council in closing its accounts for the 2005/2006 financial year recognised the need to fund the ongoing commitments arising from
the agreed equal pay compensation framework. This Provision remains in place to meet the ongoing estimated costs relating to this
compensation and £1.642m was utilised during the 2008/09 financial year, leaving a balance of £10.691m as at 31 March 2009. It is not
known when settlement will be made on these claims.

Towards bad and 
doubtful debt 
and appeals

Towards bad and 
doubtful debt in 

respect of statutory 
penalties imposed 
on late payment

Total Provision 
for bad and 

doubtful debts
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13 Financial Instruments

(i) Types of Financial Instrument

£000 £000 £000 £000

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost 392,990 432,553 34,021 19,470
-                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Borrowings 392,990 432,553 34,021 19,470

Loans and Receivables -                    -                    30,440 72,989
Available for sale financial assets -                    -                    -                    -                    
Unquoted Equity Investment at Cost -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Investments -                    -                    30,440 72,989

(ii) Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

£000 £000 £000

Interest Expenses -                        -                        (27,240)
Losses on Derecognition -                        -                        -                        
Impairment Losses -                        -                        -                        
Interest Payable and Similar Charges -                        -                        (27,240)

Interest Income 4,404                -                        4,404                
Gains on Derecognition -                        -                        -                        
Interest and Investment Income 4,404                -                        4,404                

Gains / (Losses) on Revaluation -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        

Net Gain / (Loss) for the year 4,404                -                        (22,836)

(iii) Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost

£000 £000 £000 £000

Financial Assets 30,440              72,188              72,989              72,989              

PWLB Debt 377,209            322,336            326,295            394,149            
Non PWLB Debt 150,419            123,695            125,728            146,401            

19

                              - 

                              - 

Surplus Arising on Revaluation of Financial Assets

               72,989 

             540,550 

        299,766 
        127,245 

               72,188                72,989 

             452,023 

£000

Loans and 
Receivables

Available-for 
sale- assets

Amounts recycled to Income & Expenditure 
account after impairment

Carrying 
Amount

For the year ended 31 March 2008 Interest Payable and Similar Charges incurred were £27.627m and Interest and Investment Income
was £3.929m. Both financial years reflect the adoption of the effective interest rate approach. 

Financial Assets (represented by loans and receivables) and Financial Liabilities (represented by borrowings) are carried in the balance
sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that take place over the
remaining life of the instruments.

                              - 

For the year ended 31 March 2009 the element of long term liabilities / assets that fall due for payment or receipt on or within 12 months
has been treated as current within the above table. This includes the principal repayments on annuity or equal instalment of principal
loans, loan repayments under covenant agreements and accrued interest due and receivable. The prior year comparators shown on the
balance sheet reflect previous accounting arrangements whereby the accrued interest was treated as part of the carrying value of the
loan, dependant upon the maturity date of the financial liability or asset and therefore shown within both the current and long term
categories respectively.

                124,676 

The gains and losses recognised in the 2008/2009 Income and Expenditure Account and Statement of Total Recognised Gains and
Losses (STRGL) in relation to financial instruments are made up as follows:

Total
Financial AssetsLiabilities 

measured at 
amortised cost

Loans and 
Receivables

                              - 
                              - 

(27,240)

The total investments and borrowing disclosed in the balance sheet are made up of the following categories of “financial instruments”:

Financial Liabilities at fair value 
through profit and loss

Long Term Current
At 31 March 

2009
At 31 March 

2008
At 31 March 

2008
At 31 March 

2009

£000

                              - 

The fair value represents the value of the financial asset/liability if it had to be repaid on the balance sheet date and not held until maturity.
The fair value for the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) debt has been determined by reference to the PWLB redemption rules and
prevailing PWLB redemption rates including accrued interest as at each balance sheet date. The fair values for Non-PWLB debt have
also been calculated using the same procedures and interest rates and this provided a sound approximation for fair value for these
instruments.  

The principal amount shown in the above table represents the actual value of the loan receivable or debt payable not arising from any
adjustments whilst the carrying amount reflects the amortised cost including accrued interest up to and including the valuation date.

£000

                  29,529 

           30,440 

           30,440 

                  29,529 

                              - 

             446,031 

(27,240)

                420,783         427,011              527,628 

               30,440 

                              - 

Financial 
Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

(27,240)

Principal 
Amount

31 March 2009 31 March 2008
Carrying 
AmountPrincipal Amount Fair Value Fair Value

                296,107 
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13 Financial Instruments (continued)

(iv) Nature and Extent of Risks arising from Financial Instruments 

The Council manages its risk in the following ways:
u by formally adopting the requirements of the Code of Practice;
u by approving annually in advance prudential indicators for the following three years, limiting:

u The Council’s overall borrowing (Authorised Limit & Operational Boundary);
u Its maximum and minimum exposures to Fixed and Variable rates; and
u Its maximum and minimum exposures with regard to the Maturity Structure of its Debt.

Credit Risk

£000 % % £000

( a ) ( b ) ( c ) ( a x c )

               24,800                          -                          -                          - 

                 4,729 0.06 0.06                         3 

               29,529                         3 
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These items are reported within the Council’s Annual Treasury Management Strategy which is approved by the Council prior to the
commencement of each financial year. This report outlines the approach to managing risk in relation to the Council’s financial instrument
exposure for the year ahead. Actual performance is then monitored on a quarterly basis with any significant variation from the strategy
reported to Elected Members. In line with the recommendations of the Code of Practice, an Annual Treasury Report on the year’s activity
is submitted to Members once the final accounts are complete and the outturn prudential indicators for 2008/2009 have been calculated.

In January 2009, the Council approved amendments to the Investment Counterparty and Liquidity Framework within the 2008/2009
Treasury Management Strategy. This extended the counterparty list to include institutions whose deposits are guaranteed by a AAA rated
government or which have access to the HM Treasury Guarantee Scheme. The Council also opened up a HM Treasury backed Debt
Management Account Deposit facility. These amendments were deemed necessary to minimise the credit risk ensuring that the Council's
Investment Counterparty and Liquidity Framework continued to be robust, with sufficient options available to spread deposits over a wide
range and category of financial institutions. 

No breaches of the Council’s counterparty criteria occurred during the reporting period and the Council does not expect any losses from
non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits with banks and building societies.The following analysis summarises
the Authority’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on historical experience of default assessed by the ratings agencies. In
terms of the historical experience of default for deposits with banks and building societies this default percentage has been taken from
Fitch, a credit rating organisation currently used by the Council. The table gives details of global corporate finance average cumulative
default rates (including financial organisations) and applies for the period 1990 - 2007 on investments up to 5 years. Whilst the current
credit crisis in international markets has raised the overall possibility of default, subject to amendments mentioned above, the Council
currently adopts a strict cohort rating criteria for investment counterparties and therefore has maintained the historical experience of
default as a good indicator under these conditions.

Treasury Management activity by its very nature exposes the Council to a variety of financial risks with the Council's overall risk
management procedures focusing on the unpredictability of financial markets, and implementing restrictions to minimise these risks. The
procedures for risk management are set out through a legal framework in the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 and the associated
regulations. The Council adopts the key recommendations of CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services, Code of Practice (the
Code), as described in Section 4, Executive Summary and Key Recommendations, of the Code and the CIPFA Prudential Code.

The Council’s portfolio of loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the current market
interest rate for similar loans at the balance sheet date. If the lender requested or agreed to the early repayment of such loans the
redemption amount payable will include a premium which is reflected in the fair value being higher than the carrying value. 

The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and management of risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of 
its treasury management activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury management activities focuses
on their risk implications for the organisation. It acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide support towards the
achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore committed to the principles of achieving best value in treasury
management, and to employing suitable performance measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk management. 

The Council has in place suitable treasury management practices (TMPs), setting out the manner in which the Council will seek to
achieve those policies and objectives, prescribing how it will manage and control those activities. These TMPs are a requirement of the
Code of Practice and are implemented by the Council’s Treasury Management team and reviewed regularly.

Credit risk arises from the short-term depositing of surplus funds to banks, building societies and other local authorities, as well as credit
exposures to the Council’s customers including house rents and external debtors. The credit risk relates to the possibility that these other
parties might fail to pay the amounts due to the Council.

The minimum requirements of the Council’s investment criteria, stipulated within the 2008/2009 Treasury Management Strategy,
prescribed that short term deposits could only be made with banks, building societies and local authorities based on a Lowest Common
Denominator (LCD) approach. This allows the selection of counterparties that must meet a pre-determined credit-rating level to which
monetary and time limits can then be applied. Therefore the counterparty is assessed by its weakest set of ratings, rather than its
strongest. The Council utilises the research of the world’s foremost providers of independent credit ratings (Fitch, Moody’s and Standard
& Poors). These ratings are monitored by the Council's Treasury Management team and procedures are put in place with the Council’s
Treasury advisers to ensure that the Council is notified immediately of any negative/positive movements that will affect the Council’s
counterparty list. 

Deposits with Banks and Building 

Cohort Rating - Aa

Amount at 31 
March 2009

Estimated 
maximum 

exposure to 
default

Adjustment for 
market 

conditions at 31 
March 2009

Historial 
experience of 

default
Types

Cohort Rating - A
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13 Financial Instruments (continued)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Less than three months           1,956 8,586                  1,825                11,425                12,036 
Three to six months              514 945                     445                          -                     643 
Six months to one year              485 1,103                     486                          -                  1,021 
More than one year           1,874 4,008                  1,592                          -                  4,473 

Debt Outstanding           4,829 14,642                  4,348                11,425                18,173 

Bad Debt Provision         (2,046)                (3,414)                (1,345)                          -                (3,211)

Total Debtors           2,783                11,228                  3,003                11,425                14,962 

Liquidity Risk
u Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make payments. 

Re-financing and Maturity Risk
u

u   

u   

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities based on principal outstanding is as follows:
£000

Less than one year                27,794 
Between one and two years                  2,013 
Between two and seven years                54,635 
Between seven and fifteen years              107,307 
More than fifteen years              229,034 

             420,783 

Market Risk
u

( a ) Market Risk - Interest Rates

u   

u   

u   

u   

The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above. This includes the setting and approval of the
Council's Annual Treasury Management Strategy incorporating Prudential Indicators limiting the Council’s maximum and minimum
exposures with regard to the maturity structure of its debt. The Council also has in place robust cashflow procedures as required by the
Code of Practice.  

monitoring the maturity profile of short term investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the Council’s
day to day cash flow needs.

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year and external debtors (net of provision) are not shown in the table
above. 

Re-financing risk – the possibility that the Council might require to renew a financial instrument on maturity at disadvantageous
interest rates or terms.

Under current legislation the Council can invest surplus cash balances for periods up to 364 days only. Therefore loans and receivables
are all due to mature in less than one year. 

Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes in such measures as interest rates,
prices and foreign exchange rates.

The Council does not generally allow credit for its external debtors or house rents receivable. The past due amount can be analysed by
age as follows:
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The Council has ready access to borrowings from the Money Markets to cover any day to day cash flow need, and whilst the PWLB
provides access to longer term funds, it also acts as a lender of last resort to councils (although it will not provide funding to a council
whose actions are unlawful). The Council is also required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 1992,
which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure. Therefore there is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise
finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.  

Collateral – During the reporting period the council held no collateral as security.

External Debtors 
Accounts Due

£000

The Council maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow procedures above are considered against the re-
financing risk procedures, longer term risk to the Council relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they
mature. This risk relates to the maturing of longer term financial liabilities only as the Council does not currently hold long term loans and
receivables.

                     - 
                     - 

3,672

                     - 

3,672

The approved prudential indicator limit for the maturity structure of debt is the key parameter used to address this risk. The Council
approved Treasury Management Strategy including the setting and approval of prudential indicators addresses the main risks and the
treasury management team addresses the operational risks within the approved parameters.  This includes:

monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through either new borrowing or the
rescheduling of the existing debt; and

investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall.

The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex
impact on the Council, depending on how variable and fixed interest rates move across differing financial instrument periods. For
instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates would have the following effects:

borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Income and Expenditure Account will rise;
borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the borrowing liability will fall;
investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Income and Expenditure Account will rise; and

3,672
                     - 

31 March 2008

House Rents etc 
Receivable

Central 
Government 

Grants

External Debtors 
Accounts Due

31 March 2009
House 

Rents etc 
Receivable

Central 
Government 

Grants
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13 Financial Instruments (continued)

£000
Increase in interest payable on Variable Rate borrowings +665

Overall Impact on Income and Expenditure Accounts +665

Share of Overall impact debited to the HRA +137

+1% -1%
£000 £000

Movements in Fair Value of Fixed Rate Borrowings : PWLB -41,379 +51,746

Non PWLB -5,886 +7,947

Total -47,265 +59,693

( b ) Market Risk - Prices

( c ) Market Risk - Foreign Exchange Rates

14 Insurance Fund
The Council operates an Insurance Fund to make provision for outstanding claims.  
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If all interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant the financial effect would be:

Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on
the Income and Expenditure Account or STRGL. However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and
investments will be posted to the Income and Expenditure Account and affect the General Fund Balance, subject to influences from
Government grants.  

The risk of interest rate loss is partially mitigated by the Government grant payable on financing costs. However the correlation between a
1% movement and the potential change in grant levels is not readily identifiable due to the complexity of the grant allocation methodology
adopted within the Local Government Settlement. Therefore the impact on government grants receivable has been excluded from the
table below.  

The Council, excluding the pension fund, has an interest in a number of Subsidiary and Associate Companies along with Joint Ventures.
Information on the role of the Council in respect of these interests is provided by way of a separate note within the accounts (see note 35
within the Notes to the Financial Statements).

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury Management Strategy draws together the
Council’s prudential indicators and its expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements. From this
strategy a prudential indicator is set which provides maximum and minimum limits for fixed and variable interest rate exposure. 

For each of these interests the Council will account for its share of assets, liabilities, and trading surplus or deficit within the Group
Accounts dependant on the specific nature of the relationship in line with proper accounting practice. The Group Statement on the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year ended 31 March 2009 provides an analysis of the impact on the Council’s overall
Income and Expenditure Account.

In terms of the impact on the fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities this would have no impact upon the Income and Expenditure
Account or STRGL and a 1% increase and decrease would have the following implications in terms of the fair value.

During the financial year to the Balance Sheet date of 31 March 2009 the Council did not hold short term investments earning interest on
a variable rate basis.  

Under current legislation the Council can invest surplus cash balances for periods up to 364 days only, therefore loans and receivables
included within financial assets are due to mature in less than one year. For these balances it has been assumed that the carrying amount
will represent a reasonable approximation to fair value. Thus the impact on the fair value of short term investments and subsequent
impact on the STRGL as a result of an increase in the interest rate of 1% has not been included within the table below.

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above with the movements being reversed. These assumptions are
based on the same methodology as used in part (iii) above – Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost.

The Council funds the first £300,000 of each liability claim, up to a total of £4,555,800 and the first £500,000 of each Education and
general property claim, up to a total of £2,000,000. The Council has insurance cover for claims in excess of these amounts. The vehicle
policy carries a £1,000 own damage excess, which is paid by the user Service.

At 31 March 2009, the balance of this fund was £8.673m and represented the amount set aside for potential liability and property
settlements.

As the shareholdings have arisen in the acquisition of specific interests, the Council is not in a position to limit its exposure to price
movements by diversifying its portfolio. Instead it may only acquire shareholdings in return for “open book” arrangements with the
company concerned. The Council manages the risk in this area by exerting influence within the limits of its holdings, monitoring factors
that might cause a fall in the value of specific shareholdings. 

The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies therefore has no exposure to losses arising from
movements in exchange rates.
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15 Capital Commitments
At 31 March 2009, the Council was contractually committed to the following significant capital works :

£000

Ravenscraig Regional Sports Facility 26,968         

HRA - Kitchens 4,312           

HRA - Tower Block Refurbishment 2,969           

HRA - Heating, Rewiring & Window Replacement 2,694           

Broadwood Development 2,596           

Civic Centre Refurbishment 2,311           

HRA -  Bathrooms 1,764           

HRA - Re-Roofing and Re-Rendering 1,452           

New Build Children's Homes 1,148           

HRA - Lift Replacement 1,107           

Rewiring, Various Schools 874              

Roof Renewal, Various Schools 700              

Window Replacement, Various Schools 552              

Primary School Upgrading 472              

Schools Science Laboratory Upgrading, Various 425              

16 Capital Investment and Sources of Finance

2007/08 General Services HRA 2008/2009

£000 £000 £000 £000

Capital Investment
106,845 Operational Assets 60,506 43,428 103,934

6,414 Non-Operational Assets 17,288 - 17,288
113,259 121,222

Sources of Finance
(26,068) Capital Receipts (1,811) (11,633) (13,444)
(40,629) Grants & Capital Contributions (27,339) -                   (27,339)
(15,675) Revenue Contributions (10,671) (9,963) (20,634)
(82,372) (61,417)

30,887 Net Capital Advances 59,805

(26,031) Principal Repayments (16,750) (11,700) (28,450)

4,856 Movement on Capital Financing Requirement 31,355

Explanation of Movements in Year

15,700 Increase in underlying need to borrow 15,753 -                   15,753
(supported by Revenue Support Grant)

15,187 Increase in underlying need to borrow 22,220 21,832 44,052
(unsupported by Revenue Support Grant)

30,887 Increase in Capital Financing Requirement 59,805

(26,031) Principal Repayments (28,450)

4,856 Total Movement in Capital Financing Requirement 31,355

Reconciliation to Balance Sheet Movement

1,828,127 Net Book Value of Fixed Assets 1,932,278
(1,244,546) Capital Adjustment Account (1,119,772) *

(96,611) Government Grant and Other Capital Contributions Deferred Account (122,496)
(13,775) Contributions Unapplied Account (6,986)
(47,814) Revaluation Reserve (226,288) 456,736

425,381 Capital Financing Requirement at 31 March 456,736

420,525 Capital Financing Requirement at 1 April 425,381

4,856 Movement 31,355

*  2008/09 Capital Adjustment Account balance excludes an amount of £2.703m relating to the Education PPP long term debtor entry.

From 1 April 2004, the introduction of the Prudential Code permitted Local Authorities to determine their own level of borrowing to
support capital investment according to local needs and priorities. This enabled the Council to increase its capital investment levels
to £121.222m during 2008/2009, consisting of investment in Council assets of £77.794m and £43.428m on Housing Stock and can
be summarised as follows:
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17 Details of Movements on Reserves

Reserve Purpose of Reserve

£000 £000 £000

47,814          178,474 226,288 see 17.1

1,244,546 (122,072) 1,122,474 see 17.2

-                    -                      -                      see 17.3

(50,139)         1,644              (48,495)           see 17.4

-                    -                      -                      see 17.5

Pensions Reserve 3,628 (139,383) (135,755)

Insurance Fund 8,622 51 8,673 see 17.6

78 2,806 2,884 see 17.7

General Fund 27,016 (6,822)             20,194

4,098 (135)                3,963

TOTAL 1,285,663 (85,437)           1,200,226

17.1 Movement in Revaluation Reserve
£000

Upward Revaluations of Fixed Assets 202,270                   
Downward Revaluations (on assets against which a revaluation amount already exists) (16,773)
Impairments (on assets against which a revaluation amount already exists) (193)
Disposal of Assets (410)
Historical Cost Depreciation (6,420)

Total Movement on Account in 2008/2009 178,474                   

17.2 Movement in Capital Adjustment Account
£000

Repayment of External Loans 28,450                     
Capital Financed from Current Revenue 20,634                     
Reversal of Depreciation of Fixed Assets (61,630)                    
Net Book Value of Fixed Asset Disposals (13,179)                    
Downward Revaluations and Impairments of Fixed Assets (172,553)                  
Deferred Grants and Other Capital Contributions Release 8,243                       
Capital Receipts Applied 13,444                     
Other Adjustments and Transfers 54,519                     

Total Movement on Account in 2008/2009 (122,072)                  

Further Details of 
Movement

see note 2.3       
(page 13)

Balancing account to allow 
inclusion of Pension Asset / 
(Liability) in the Balance 
Sheet.

see Statement of the 
Movement on the 
General Fund 
Balance, page 10.

Resources available to 
meet future running costs 
for non-housing services.

Proceeds of fixed asset 
sales available to fund 
capital investment

Store of capital resources 
set-aside to meet past 
expenditure.

Store of gains on 
revaluation of investments 
not yet realised through 
sales.

Resources earmarked to 
meet outstanding claims.

see HRA 
Statements, page 36

Resources available to 
meet repair and renewal of 
buildings and equipment

Housing Revenue 
Account

Resources available to 
meet future running costs 
for council houses.

Repairs & Renewals 
Fund

Available-for-Sale 
Financial Instruments 
Reserve

Financial Instruments 
Adjustment Account

Capital Receipts 
Reserve 

Balancing Account to allow 
for differences in statutory 
requirements and proper 
accounting practices for 
borrowing and investments.

The Capital Adjustment Account provides a balancing mechanism between the different rates at which assets are depreciated under
the SORP and are financed through the capital controls system.

The Revaluation Reserve records unrealised revaluation gains arising (since 1 April 2008) from holding fixed assets.

The Council maintains a number of reserves in the Balance Sheet some of which are required to be held for statutory reasons,
some are needed to comply with proper accounting practice, and others have been set up voluntarily to earmark resources for
future spending plans. The movement on these reserves can be summarised as follows:
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Balance as at 
31 March 2009

Revaluation Reserve

Net Movement 
in Year

Balance as at 
1 April 2008

Store of gains on reval-
uation of fixed assets not 
yet realised through sales.

Capital Adjustment 
Account
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17.3 Movement in Available-for-Sale Financial Instruments Reserve
£000

Unrealised gains / (losses) on investments -                    

Other changes in the "fair value" of investments -                    

Total Movement on Account in 2008/2009 -                    

17.4 Movement in Financial Instruments Adjustment Account
£000

Discounts Received from Early Settlement of Borrowing 243               

Premiums / Discounts Annual  Write-off 1,757            

Re-measurement of LOBO Loans (356)              

Total Movement on Account in 2008/2009 1,644            

17.5 Movement in Capital Receipts Reserve 
£000

Capital Receipts Received in 2008/09 13,444          

Amount applied to finance new capital investment in 2008/2009 (13,444)         

Total Movement on Account in 2008/2009 -                    

17.6 Movement in Insurance Fund
£000

Amounts Received from service revenue accounts during 2008/2009 3,500

Amount expended on premiums and claims settlements during 2008/2009 (3,449)

Total Movement on Account in 2008/2009 51

The Insurance Fund represents the resources earmarked to meet outstanding claims.

17.7 Movement in Repairs & Renewals Fund
£000

Amounts Received from Crematorium Operator during 2008/2009 34

Creation of Repairs & Renewals Fund to improve Council facilities 4,250

Amount expended on repairs and renewals on Council facilities in 2008/2009 (1,478)

Total Movement on Account in 2008/2009 2,806

18 Analysis of Net Assets Employed
2007/2008 2008/2009

£000 £000
General Fund 614,055 534,566
Housing Revenue Account 671,891 667,332
Trading Activities (283) (1,672)

Total 1,285,663 1,200,226

19 Members' Allowances

A register of Members' interests is maintained and can be accessed via the Council's website.
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The total amount paid during 2008/2009 in respect of Members' allowances was £1.536m (£1.482m for 2007/2008). These were paid in
accordance with regulations issued by the Scottish Government and consist of salary, travel, subsistence and telephone and ICT
expenses.

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account provides a balancing mechanism between the different rates at which gains and losses
(such as premiums on the early repayment of debt) are recognised under the SORP and are required by statute to be met from the
General Fund.

The Available-for-Sale Financial Instruments Reserve records unrealised revaluation gains arising from holding available-for-sale
investments, plus any unrealised losses that have not arisen from impairment of the assets. 

The Capital Receipts Reserve represents the value of receipts arising from the disposal of fixed assets that can be used to increase
capital investment in future years.

The Repairs & Renewals Fund balance of £2.884m (shown in Note 17 page 24) is represented by a £2.772m resource to fund 
improvements to Council facilities and a £0.112m resource to fund crematorium equipment.
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20 Devolved School Management

21 Interest on Revenue and Stock Balances

� Housing Revenue Account
� Each individual Trading Activity
� General Fund Revenue Account

22 Contingent Assets

23 Long-Term Debtors

24 Agency Expenditure and Income

25 Pooled Funds

26 Local Authorities (Goods & Services) Act 1970 

£000 £000 £000 £000
Income Related Income Related

Expenditure Expenditure
Grounds Maintenance 224 119 62 59
Building Cleaning 1,242 1,116 1,583 1,323
Catering 10 9 34 27
Transport, Fuel etc 954 926 1198 1,162
Design Services, Finance & Other 204 108 227 139

Total 2,634 2,278 3,104 2,710

27 Local Government Act 1986 - Publicity Account

2007/2008 2008/2009
£000 £000

216 238
53 71

Economic Development 109 21
Total 378 330

28 External Audit Fee
In 2008/2009 North Lanarkshire Council incurred the following fees relating to external audit and inspection :

2007/08 2008/2009
£000 £000

Agreed fee for the year 372 385
Notified fixed charge element for the year 228 244
One off rebate - (33)
Total 600 596

Section 5 of the Local Government Act 1986 requires the Council to maintain a separate account for publicity expenditure. The
details of expenditure actually incurred are as follows:
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In June 2005, the Council entered into a Public Private Partnership for the provision of school buildings, maintenance and other
facilities. The agreement has provided 17 new purpose-built schools consisting of 3 secondary schools, 7 primary schools, and 7 joint
campus primary schools. When the agreement ends on 31 March 2037 responsibility for maintenance and operation transfers back to
the Council. However, the Council will only have to budget for routine maintenance for the first five years following expiry of the
agreement because the contract contains provisions that require the contractor to ensure that the buildings are in a condition to
require no replacement of any significant building element over these five years.  

It is estimated that at the end of the contract the net depreciated replacement cost of schools returning to the Council will be £78.377m
according to the 2008/2009 valuation. Accounting arrangements require this sum to be recognised in the Council's Balance Sheet over 
the life of the contract, initially as a long-term debtor, with the full value transferring to fixed assets at the end of the contract. The value
of the long-term debtor recognised is £2.703m as at 31 March 2009 (31 March 2008; £nil).

The Council bills and collects domestic water and waste water charges on behalf of Scottish Water along with its own Council Tax.
During 2008/2009 the Council received £0.877m for providing this service. The corresponding figure for 2007/2008 was £0.855m.

North Lanarkshire Council has embraced the Joint Futures Agenda by entering into partnership with NHS Lanarkshire to provide a
single assessment and equipment service. Custom built premises were built and the service was launched on 20th May 2002. The
total operating costs are £4.447m, of which NHS Lanarkshire contributes £0.491m (The figures for 2007/2008 were £4.013m and
£0.489m respectively).

Job Adverts
Council Newspaper

2008/20092007/2008

A net credit balance of £0.190m is held by the Council at 31 March 2009 (£0.429m net debit as at 31 March 2008) in relation to the 
Devolved School Management (DSM) scheme of delegation for schools.

The interest resultant from the operations of the Council has been allocated to the three main accounts of the Council, at a rate of 5.09%:

The Council has identified contingent assets in relation to retrospective VAT in respect of predecessor authorities following a Court of
Appeal judgement (the "Fleming" case). It is estimated that the value of these claims may be in the region of £1.000m but, as
negotiations are continuing with HM Revenue & Customs, the final recovery to the Council has not been determined.

Section 2 (2) of the Local Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970 allows Councils to provide goods and services to other public
bodies. The Council undertook work during 2008/2009 on behalf of other public bodies as follows:
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29 Officers' Remuneration

2007/2008 2008/2009

90 141
20 26
20 17
9 13
3 2
1 -
5 5
- -
- -
- 1
- -
1 -

149 205

30 Central Support Costs

31 Reconciliation of Deficit on Income and Expenditure Account to Net Cash Inflow from Revenue Activities 
 2008/2009

£000

Deficit for the Year (167,442)

Non Cash Transactions
Contributions from (to) Reserves 1,753
Items relating to Loans Fund 213
Other Non Cash Items (1,344)
Adjustments relating to Capital Charges 206,549 207,171

Items on an Accruals Basis
Increase in Stocks & WIP (195)
Decrease in Debtors 8,869
Increase in Creditors 4,731 13,405

Net Cash Inflow from Revenue Activities 53,134

32 Reconciliation of Movement in Cash to Movement in Net Debt
2007/2008 2008/2009

£000 £000

Net Debt as at 1 April (398,849) (389,126)

Increase / (Decrease) in Cash in Period (8,825) 462
(Increase) / Decrease in Debt (including Non-Cash) 21,249 25,054
Increase / (Decrease) in Liquid Resources (including Non-Cash) (2,701) (42,549)
Movement in Debt in Period - (Increase) / Decrease 9,723 (17,033)

Net Debt as at 31 March (389,126) (406,159)

33 Reconciliation of Movement in Financing and Management of Liquid Resources to Balance Sheet

Cash Flow Non-Cash
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash in Hand 1,454 (209) -                        1,245
Bank Overdraft (11,381) 671 -                        (10,710)

(9,927) 462 -                        (9,465)

Financing - Debt Short Term (19,470) (14,316) (235) (34,021)
Financing - Debt Long Term (432,553) 39,563 -                        (392,990)
Finance Leases (165) 42 -                        (123)

(452,188) 25,289 (235) (427,134)

Liquid Resources - Temporary Lending 72,989 (42,659) 110                   30,440

TOTAL (389,126) (16,908) (125) (406,159)
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Balance as at 31 
March 2009

Balance as at 31 
March 2008

50,000 - 59,999
60,000 - 69,999
70,000 - 79,999
80,000 - 89,999
90,000 - 99,999

100,000 - 109,999
110,000 - 119,999

In addition to these costs, the costs of centralised repairs and maintenance of property, and the costs of office accommodation were
fully allocated to user services, on the basis of property usage by services and repair requests from services.

In accordance with the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP), the costs of all Central Support Services were fully
allocated to user services. The allocation to user services was in relation to direct costs, with the Corporate and Democratic Core
costs being allocated to a separate line.

Direct costs are those which flow from direct support service provision to operational services, whereas the costs of democracy arise
from the administration of the Council.

Support Services are defined as internal activities of a professional, technical and administrative nature. They do not provide local
authority services to the public directly, but give technical, professional and administrative support to the Council's operational
services.The basis of allocation of these costs is generally allocation on a time based methodology.

Total

140,000 - 149,999

160,000 - 169,999

The number of employees whose remuneration, excluding pension contributions, was £50,000 or more were as follows:

Number of 
Employees

Number of 
Employees

Remuneration £

120,000 - 129,999
130,000 - 139,999

150,000 - 159,999
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34 Analysis of Cash Received from Government Grants
£000 £000

Revenue Support Grant 462,596            
DWP Grants - Housing Benefits 86,717              
Council Tax Benefit 24,405              

Other Government Grants :
Fairer Scotland Fund 15,488
Community Regeneration Fund 7,251
Offenders / Criminal Justice Service 5,748
Private Sector Housing Grant 3,866
Education Maintenance Allowance 1,485
Determined to Succeed 1,118
Workforce Plus 806
Vacant & Derelict Land Fund 529
Financial Inclusion Fund 516
Cleansing Strategic Waste Grant 351
Gaelic Education 324
Supported Employment 239
Community Voices 239
Scambusters 237
School of Ambition Programme 156
NLC Connect Big Lottery 149
Telecare Grant 145
New Futures Fund 130
Glow Project 114
Early Implementers Programme 110
Other Grants 417 39,418              
Cash Inflow from Government Grants 613,136            

35 Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

35.1 Subsidiary Companies:

u North Lanarkshire Municipal Bank Ltd.

u The Campsies Centre (Cumbernauld)  Ltd.

u Broadwood Stadium (Cumbernauld) Ltd.

u Fusion Assets Limited
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The Council holds shares in various trading companies, either as a controlling or minority shareholder. 

The Council is also represented on the Boards of various companies that are limited by guarantee and have no share capital. It
participates in these companies by means of Board membership and the provision of funding and management support. 

This company was formed on 1st April 1996 to take over the operations of the Motherwell, Kilsyth and Cumbernauld banks, and
part of the former Strathkelvin Municipal Bank. The directors are appointed by North Lanarkshire Council and are members of the
Council. 

Assets to the value of £29.700m were held as at 31 March 2009 compared to £27.600m as at 31 March 2008, with amounts due
to depositors valued at £29.600m as at 31 March 2009 and £27.500m as at 31 March 2008. The total value of the Municipal
Bank's lending is with North Lanarkshire Council.

This company was formed for the purpose of developing Cumbernauld town centre and is wholly owned by the Council.

The net profit for the year to 31 March 2009 was £0.219m compared with a profit of £0.060m for the year to 31 March 2008. Net
assets were worth £5.173m as at 31 March 2009 compared to £5.020m as at 31 March 2008. These figures have been
incorporated in the Group Accounts.

This company is wholly owned by the Council and was set up for the purpose of owning and managing Broadwood Stadium.

The net loss for the year to 31 March 2009 was £7.418m compared with a loss of £0.225m for the year to 31 March 2008. Net
assets were worth £0.061m as at 31 March 2009 compared to £8.046m as at 31 March 2008. These figures have been
incorporated in the Group Accounts. 

This company was incorporated on 27 March 2006 and is limited by guarantee. Its main purpose is to promote urban regeneration
and economic development within North Lanarkshire. 

Following the resignation of Scottish Enterprise Lanarkshire (SEL) on 30 June 2008, North Lanarkshire Council is the sole
company member. The current Board membership is five from the Council and three members co-opted from the private sector. 

The net surplus for the year to 31 March 2009 was £0.130m compared with a surplus of £0.256m for the year to 31 March 2008.
Net assets were worth £1.419m as at 31 March 2009 compared to £1.729m as at 31 March 2008. These figures have been
incorporated in the Group Accounts.
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35.2 Associated Companies:

u The Time Capsule (Monklands) Trust Ltd.

u Time Capsule Trading Company Limited

u North Lanarkshire Leisure Ltd.

u Town Centre Initiatives Ltd.

u North Lanarkshire Forward Ltd.

u North Lanarkshire CCTV Ltd.

u Lanarkshire Key Fund

u New Lanarkshire Ltd.

u Greenhead Moss Community Trust

u Dalziel Workspace

This company was set up to promote civic pride in Lanarkshire and is a partnership of public and private bodies.

The Council is represented on the Board of Directors of the company, that is limited by guarantee and has no share capital.

The Council is one of four founder members of the Board of Directors, the others being Lanarkshire Development Agency, the
Central Scotland Countryside Trust and Scottish Natural Heritage. Community members are also strongly represented on the
Board.

The Council is represented on the Board of Directors of the company, that is limited by guarantee and has no share capital.

The company was incorporated as a trading subsidiary of the Time Capsule (Monklands) Trust Ltd on 9 December 2002. 

The company recorded an operating surplus of £0.011m for the year ended 31 March 2009 and a balanced budget position in the
previous year to 31 March 2008.

This company was established as a registered Scottish charity on 30 August 2006. It is a not for profit company limited by guarantee
which means that any surpluses will be reinvested in improving services provided to the community of North Lanarkshire. The
Council has a minority (4) representation on the board of 12 nominated representatives.

Other members of the company are  South Lanarkshire Council, Scottish Enterprise and community representatives.

The sole purpose of the company is to provide financial support to its Holding Company for as long as it remains a charitable
company.
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The company's main objective is to manage the leisure facilities owned by the Council, not directly being provided by other
management arrangements, for which it is paid a management fee under the terms of funding agreement between the Council and
the company (see note 36, page 31).

For the year to 31 March 2009 the company recorded a net operating surplus excluding actuarial gain / (loss) on defined benefit
pension scheme of £0.724m (2007/2008: £0.602m) with net assets amounting to £0.895m (2007/2008: £1.065m).

This company was formed to encourage the development of town centres in Scotland but its scope is now restricted to the Council
area. It has no share capital and is limited by guarantee. Directors were appointed by the Council from councillors, officials and
members of the business community. No group exercises control of funds, voting rights, or the proceeds of a winding up of the
company.

This is a registered environment company, set up in accordance with the appropriate legislation in order that, by making qualifying
contributions to it, the Council can receive tax credits in respect of the Landfill Tax income it receives as an operator.

The company was incorporated on 15 April 1998 and is limited by guarantee. In accordance with the legislation, it has Council
representatives on its Board but is not controlled by the Council.

This charitable company was formed for the purpose of managing and developing CCTV systems across North Lanarkshire. It is
limited by guarantee and has Council representation on its Board but is not controlled by the Council.

The company was set up in December 1999 with the purpose of seeking funding from the European Social Fund for the promotion
of vocational training for the unemployed of Lanarkshire.

This company was formed to assist the unemployed residents of North Lanarkshire in accessing education, training and
employment opportunities. The company is limited by guarantee and has no share capital. The Council is represented on the Board
of Directors but it does not control the company.

This company was set up as a charitable company to improve, protect and manage Greenhead Moss, a former landfill site at 
Wishaw.

The company was recognised as a charity by the Inland Revenue from 28 June 2002. At that date the Council ceased to control the
company and it now has minority representation on the company's Board of Directors.

The company's main objective is to provide management services for the operation of the Time Capsule, a leisure facility owned by
North Lanarkshire Council.

Under the terms of the contract between North Lanarkshire Council and the Time Capsule (Monklands) Ltd the company is paid
management fees for the provision of these services (see note 36 on page 31).

The Trust achieved a net operating surplus excluding actuarial gain / (loss) on defined benefit pension scheme of £0.034m
compared with a surplus of £0.148m for the year to 31 March 2008. Net assets were worth £0.485m at 31 March 2009 compared to
£0.592m as at 31 March 2008.
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35.2 Associated Companies (continued):

u Environmental Key Fund

The Council is represented on the Board of Directors but it does not control the company.

u West of Scotland Loan Fund

u 3X Limited

35.3 Joint Boards

35.4 Joint Ventures

u Amey Roads (North Lanarkshire) Limited

u Maintenance and Property Care Limited

u Saltire Facilities Management Limited

u Walker Profiles Limited

35.5 Group Accounts

Broadwood Stadium (Cumbernauld) Ltd.
The Campsies Centre (Cumbernauld)  Ltd.
Amey Roads (North Lanarkshire) Limited
Maintenance and Property Care Limited
Saltire Facilities Management Limited
The Time Capsule (Monklands) Trust Ltd.
North Lanarkshire Leisure Ltd.
Strathclyde Joint Police Board
Strathclyde Fire & Rescue
Strathclyde Concessionary Travel Scheme
Strathclyde Partnership for Transport
Lanarkshire Valuation Joint Board
Fusion Assets Ltd.

This company was formed to provide grants to community organisations undertaking environmental projects. The company is
limited by guarantee and has no share capital. 

The Council is represented on a number of joint boards which are "Section 106" independent public bodies formed by Act of
Parliament. These bodies are Strathclyde Police Joint Board, Strathclyde Fire & Rescue Joint Board, Strathclyde Partnership for
Transport, Strathclyde Concessionary Travel Scheme and Lanarkshire Valuation Joint Board. All local government functions that
relate to these bodies have been delegated from the constituent councils that comprise the area of each Board. The members of each
Board are elected councillors and appointed by the councils in proportions specified in the legislation.

This company is a partnership of authorities from within the former Strathclyde Regional Council area and was formed to assist in
the development of business opportunities in the Asian and Polish markets. The Council is represented on the Board of Directors
but does not control the company.

This company is a partnership of authorities from within the former Strathclyde Regional Council area and was formed to
encourage the creation  and growth of small businesses within local Council areas.

The Council is represented on the Board of Directors but it does not control the company.
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The Council has no shares nor ownership of any of these Boards. Nevertheless, these Boards are included within the Council's
Group Accounts under the wider definition of an "associate" even where the Council holds less than 20% of the voting rights that is
normally presumed to confer significant interest. The Council's share of each Board's net assets is calculated on its respective
percentage share of the aggregate contributions made by the constituent councils. 

Local government legislation provides that local authorities have an obligation to meet the expenditure of the Joint Boards of which
they are a constituent member. As a consequence the added liabilities from the pension deficits are fully incorporated within the
Group Accounts.

This joint venture was formed, in November 2000, under an agreement whereby Amey Roads (North Lanarkshire) Ltd. assumed
responsibility for the Council's roads and lighting maintenance contract works. The Council holds a minority (33%) share in the
joint venture company.

This joint venture was formed, in January 2001, under an agreement whereby Maintenance and Property Care Ltd. assumed
responsibility for the delivery of the Council's housing and other property maintenance. The Council holds a minority (33%) share
in the joint venture company.

This joint venture was formed, in February 2001, under an agreement whereby Saltire Facilities Management Ltd. assumed
responsibility for the Council's gas heating contract works. The Council holds a minority (33%) share in the joint venture company.

This joint venture was formed, in June 2000, under an agreement whereby Walker Profiles Ltd. took control of the former window
factory . The Council holds a minority (10%) share in the joint venture company.

The following entities have a significant impact on the Council's operations and have been consolidated into the Group Accounts:
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36 Related Party Transactions

u

Income Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000

Strathclyde Joint Police Board         - 30,458         - 32,631
Strathclyde Fire & Rescue Joint Board         - 15,195         - 16,275
Strathclyde Partnership for Transport         - 5,204         - 5,605
Strathclyde Concessionary Fares Scheme         - 411         - 341
Lanarkshire Valuation Joint  Board         - 1,752         - 1,802

u

Income Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000

The Time Capsule (Monklands) Trust Ltd.
Contribution to Trust Operating Costs -                      1,463 -                      1,562
Payment of Property Insurance -                      6 -                      3

The Campsies Centre (Cumbernauld)  Ltd.
Payments due to North Lanarkshire Council 58 -                      38 -                      

Time Capsule Trading Company Ltd.
Contribution to Company Operating Costs -                      16 -                      21

North Lanarkshire Leisure Ltd.
Contribution to Trust Operating Costs 353 7,703 -                      8,258

Broadwood Stadium (Cumbernauld) Ltd.
Contribution to Company Operating Costs -                      117 -                      146
Payments due to North Lanarkshire Council 29 -                      20 -                      

Amey Roads (North Lanarkshire) Ltd.
Payment for Roads Maintenance -                      13,578 -                      16,595
Discount and efficiency improvement credits -                      (1,237) -                      (1,583)
Dividends due to North Lanarkshire Council 353 -                      125 -                      

Walker Profiles Ltd.
Payment for Goods Received -                      1,923 -                      2,464

Maintenance and Property Care Ltd.
Payment for Property Maintenance -                      36,321 -                      38,581
Discount and efficiency improvement credits -                      (1,079) -                      (1,255)

Saltire (Facilities Management) Ltd.
Payment for Gas Heating Maintenance -                      12,313 -                      12,706
Payment for Pensions Costs -                      18 -                      -                      
Discount and efficiency improvement credits -                      (208) -                      (245)
Dividends due to North Lanarkshire Council 89 -                      132 -                      

North Lanarkshire Municipal Bank Ltd
Interest Payable -                      1,033 -                      950
Income due to North Lanarkshire Council 20 -                      20 -                      

Fusion Assets Ltd
Payment for services -                      33 -                      104
Income due to North Lanarkshire Council 26 -                      40 -                      

37 Contingent Liabilities

The Council has identified contingent liabilities in relation to other equal pay grievances and the potential risk of new equal pay claims
that may be pursued during the implementation of the Single Status pay and grading structure. This is in addition to the provision
referred to in Note 9.

During the year the Council entered into a number of transactions with other related parties. Broadly this can be split into
arrangements with joint boards and other external arrangements, the most material of these transactions (not disclosed elsewhere)
include:

The Council also entered into a number of transactions under joint venture, subsidiary, associate, and other external trading
arrangements:

Related parties are bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or conversely to be controlled or
influenced by the Council. Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Council providing the statutory
framework within which the Council operates as well as providing the majority of funding in the form of grants. Details of government
grants received can be found at note 34 on page 28. The Council transacts with NHS bodies on an ongoing basis as part of the
provision of council services. Transactions with NHS Lanarkshire in relation to Pooled Funds constitute the majority of these
transactions and details have been disclosed within note 25.
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The Council provides funding to a range of Joint Boards which can be regarded as associate organisations to the Council:

2007/2008 2008/2009

2007/2008

The Council is unaware of any other material contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2009 and has made no further provisions.

2008/2009

The arrangements for dealing with the residual affairs of Strathclyde Regional Council, involving all 12 successor authorities sharing
residual income and expenditure on an annual  basis, is co-ordinated by Glasgow City Council.

The general arrangements are likely to result in the Council being liable for additional costs in future years. The Accounts contain
provisions relating to all residual issues identified by Glasgow City Council in their annual intromission of accounts to 31 March 2009.
This latest intromission statement identifies a potential reduced level of costs for the Council and a reduced provision of £0.194m
(£0.342m at 31 March 2008) has been included in the Creditors balance for 2008/2009 accordingly.
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38 Trading Operations

The financial results for the 3-year rolling period can be summarised as follows:

Trading Operation Turnover Expenditure

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

2006/2007 8,006 7,662 344 -                      344

2007/2008 8,399 8,156 243 -                      243

2008/2009 8,711 8,423 288 -                      288

Surplus/(Deficit) over 3 Years 25,116 24,241 875 -                      875

Catering 2006/2007 18,066 17,776 290 -                      290

2007/2008 18,825 18,406 419 -                      419

2008/2009 19,094 18,190 904 -                      904

Surplus/(Deficit) over 3 Years 55,985 54,372 1,613 -                      1,613

2006/2007 16,515 15,983 532 -                      532

2007/2008 16,536 15,717 819 -                      819

2008/2009 17,946 16,957 989 -                      989

Surplus/(Deficit) over 3 Years 50,997 48,657 2,340 -                      2,340

Cleansing 2006/2007 23,663 23,623 40 -                      40

2007/2008 25,143 24,376 767 -                      767

2008/2009 26,114 24,559 1,555 -                      1,555

Surplus/(Deficit) over 3 Years 74,920 72,558 2,362 -                      2,362

2006/2007 7,865 7,667 198 -                      198

2007/2008 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                        

2008/2009 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                        

Surplus/(Deficit) over 3 Years 7,865 7,667 198 -                      198

Transport 2006/2007 16,920 16,797 123 -                      123

2007/2008 17,335 16,882 453 -                      453

2008/2009 18,070 17,630 440 -                      440

Surplus/(Deficit) over 3 Years 52,325 51,309 1,016 -                      1,016

2006/2007 91,035 89,508 1,527 -                      1,527

2007/2008 86,238 83,537 2,701 -                      2,701

2008/2009 89,935 85,759 4,176 -                      4,176

The activities, customers and operational objectives of the above significant Trading Operations are shown overleaf:

The Council has established 6 trading operations where the service is required to operate in a commercial environment and balance
its budget by generating income from fees and charges to other parts of the authority or other organisations. These were established
following the introduction of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003. This requires local authorities to conduct each significant
trading operation so that income is not less than expenditure over each three year period. This statement shows the surpluses and
deficits arising over the three-year rolling period.

Building Cleaning 

Surplus / 
(Deficit)

Exceptional 
Items / Equal 

Pay

Revised 
Surplus / 
(Deficit)

The financial results in respect of the Sport & Leisure Management trading operation reflect only up until 15 September 2006 at which
time the management of the Council's leisure facilities was taken over by the newly created charitable trust North Lanarkshire Leisure
Ltd. 

Grounds Maintenance

Sport & Leisure 
Management
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Total  Trading Operations
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38 Trading Operations (continued)

Building Cleaning

Catering 

Grounds Maintenance

Cleansing

Transport

Net Surplus on Trading Operations

In 2008 Building Cleaning were shortlisted by APSE for the best service team: building/facilities cleaning. The section has full
accreditation to Investors In People as well as accreditation to BSEN ISO9000:2008. The section also went through a restructure in
2008/2009 that combined the management structure of former building cleaning and catering functions into a single management
structure to deliver both services.

The Catering operation, which provides over 4 million meals per year, carries out a range of work comprising catering for schools,
social work meals, civic and leisure catering and staff restaurants. Catering is also responsible for the delivery of national initiatives
such as the "Hungry for Success" and the implementation of the Schools (Health Promotion and Nutrition) (Scotland) Act 2007 which
explains the nutritional requirements not only for school lunches but also throughout the whole school day with a whole school
approach. In addition, the Diet and Nutrition Policy was launched in November 2008 and reflects all communities in North
Lanarkshire. The Catering operation has Investors In People and Chartermark accreditation.

Catering Services has undertaken a Best Value Review and over a three year period has implemented many initiatives and actions
to continuously improve the service. The financial year 2008/2009 once again proved challenging for catering with rising food costs,
the on-going financial challenges and a slow recovery in the uptake of school meals in the Secondary sector. In addition, there was
the seamless integration of Operational Management and Support Teams from Catering and Building Cleaning into a new Facility
Support Services team.
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The net surplus of £4.176m arising from the operation of Trading Operations set up by the Council is contained within the Income and
Expenditure Account (page 9).

The Building Cleaning operation employs over 1,300 people and has a turnover of around £8.5m. This service provides a
comprehensive cleaning service in a variety of buildings including schools and offices across North Lanarkshire. The section also
delivers cleaning services on behalf of Balfour Beatty WorkPlace to schools in the Education 2010 projects. 

The Transport Operation provides a comprehensive Fleet Management & Maintenance service to all sections of the Council and its
four Private Partners, with a fleet size in excess of 1,000 vehicles. Transport continued to deliver services during a year of substantial
change, with a number of legislative and operational challenges being addressed. This year saw the Mechanics Craft worker group
being Job Evaluated and assimilated onto the new NLC pay scale (changing from a 39 to a 37 hour working week). 

The workshops continued to deliver a 24/7 service to fleet users 365 days of the year, as well as its external activites in relation to
taxi testing. The recruitment of suitably qualified mechanics remains difficult in the industry. NLC continues to operate a very
successful apprentice mechanics scheme to overcome skills shortages. Two new apprentices were recruited from the NLC area in
October 2008. A further four apprentices are nearing completion of their training and will be used to fill existing mechanics post
vacancies when they qualify in November 2009. Investors in People and ISO 9001:2000 accreditation were maintained.

The main Ground Maintenance operations are grass cutting, shrub and hedge management, weed control, the planting of trees,
shrubs, seeding and turf maintenance, construction and marking out of sports surfaces. Also included are the maintenance and
management of street trees and woodlands.  

In early 2009 the service was awarded ISO 9001: 2008 and ISO 14001: 2004 which demonstrates its ability to manage the impact on
the environment, prevent pollution and continually improve environmental performance, comply with legislation and control, manage
and continually improve processes. In November 2008 responsibility for the street cleaning service was transferred to Grounds
Maintenance. In total approximately 210 employees were transferred. Street cleaning has a diverse range of activities, for example
removal of dead animals, removing illegally dumped waste, litter picking, road sweeping and emptying of litter bins. Progress is being
made to integrate the two services.

The Cleansing operation provides a front line refuse collection, operating six recycling sites and the Auchinlea Landfill Site. It
continues to expand the recycling service to the public. Over the year the domestic waste service converted to an alternate week
collection, recycling was introduced at flatted areas in the largest single roll-out of its type in Scotland, trials on food waste recycling
commenced and an enhanced special uplift service was introduced. All of these enhancements contribute to the overall aim of
meeting the challenging target of 40% recycling in 2010. 

In November 2008 responsibility for the street cleaning service was transferred to the Grounds Maintenance operation in accordance
with the outcome of the Best Value Review. Cleansing Services participate in benchmarking exercises for COSLA, the Accounts
Commission and APSE. It is currently enhancing its ISO accreditation and plays a national role in the design of the Waste Dataflow
system which drives the monitoring of waste arisings for SEPA.
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39 STATEMENT OF CAPITAL INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

2008/2009 2008/2009 2008/2009

Budget Total Actual Expenditure  % of Budget
£000 £000 £000

General Services
Chief Executives & Regeneration 6,331 4,103 64.8%
Property Services 3,888 3,810 98.0%
Environmental Services 27,079 27,002 99.7%
Finance & Customer Services 1,104 1,096 99.3%
Social Work 8,142 9,204 113.0%
Learning & Leisure 34,680 32,579 93.9%

Total Expenditure on Fixed Assets 81,224 77,794 95.8%

Gross Expenditure 81,224 77,794 95.8%

Financed By:

Receipts from Sale of Assets 2,436 1,811 74.3%
Revenue Contributions 9,786 10,671 109.0%
Capital Grants and Other Contributions 25,232 27,339 108.4%
Loans Fund Advances 43,770 37,973 86.8%

Total Financing 81,224 77,794 95.8%

Housing 
Estate Regeneration 2,269 2,130 93.9%
Energy Efficiency 11,009 12,255 111.3%
Major Repairs and Environmentals 8,693 7,753 89.2%
Home Safety and Security 5,667 3,952 69.7%
Other Expenditure 20,662 17,338 83.9%

Total Expenditure on Fixed Assets 48,300 43,428 89.9%

Financed By:
Receipts from Sale of Council Dwellings 12,401 11,743 94.7%
Receipts from Sale of Other Assets - (110) -
Revenue Contributions 10,663 9,963 93.4%
Loans Fund Advances 25,236 21,832 86.5%

Total Financing 48,300 43,428 89.9%

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN CAPITAL DEBT OUTSTANDING
Net Capital Principal

Capital Debt at Advances Repayments Capital Debt at
 31 March 2008 2008/2009 to Revenue  31 March 2009

£000 £000 £000 £000

Corporate Services 57,627 4,551 2,587 59,591

Economic Regeneration 7,519 2,620 133 10,006

Environmental Services 215,329 27,002 8,497 233,834

Finance & Customer Services 9,026 1,096 1,040 9,082

Housing & Social Work Services 59,476 9,204 4,429 64,251

Housing Revenue Account 85,486 21,832 11,700                     95,618

Learning & Leisure 200,780 33,321 9,208 224,893

Composite Income (222,628) (39,821) (9,668) (252,781)

Trading Activities 1,423 - 72 1,351

Social Inclusion 1,769 - 452 1,317

Total 415,807 59,805 28,450 447,162
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40 SUBJECTIVE REVENUE ACCOUNT

2007/2008 2008/2009
Actual Actual
£000 £000

HOW THE MONEY WAS SPENT

429,123 Employee Costs 439,856
90,237 Property Costs 98,126
44,044 Housing Repairs 46,339

113,653 Supplies and Services 100,578
35,696 Transport and Plant Costs 37,338
38,743 Administration Costs 26,835
31,835 Apportioned Expenses 48,302

181,629 Payments to Other Bodies 210,434
24,282 Council Tax Benefit 24,635
57,757 Rent Rebates 58,776
26,951 Rent Allowances 30,093
10,433 Other Costs 16,574
(1,954) PPP Contributions (2,315)
54,675 Financing Costs 57,412
15,675 Capital from Current Revenue 20,635

(176,346) Inter-Departmental Charges (183,564)
994 Contribution to (from) HRA Balances (135)
26 Transfer to(from) Reserves 2,806

4,327 Non Service Specific Expenditure 4,170

981,780 1,036,895

 
WHERE THE MONEY CAME FROM

380,090 Revenue Support Grant 462,596
119,324 Council Tax / Community Charge 120,784
118,050 Non-Domestic Rates 124,196
91,477 Government Grants 32,621

149,731 Other Grants, Reimbursements and Contributions 155,867
102,914 Rental Income 104,512

442 PPP Dividend Income 257
19,714 Sales, Fees and Charges 18,101
3,734 Interest 4,237

176,346 Income from Other  Departments 183,564
(176,346) Inter-Departmental Charges (183,564)

7,049 Other Income 6,902

992,525 1,030,073

10,745            Surplus / (Deficit)  for the Year (6,822)            
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u HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

2007/2008 2008/2009 2008/2009
£000 £000 £000

Income

93,276 Dwelling Rent Income 94,791

989 Non-Dwelling Rent Income 1,015

6 Other Income 1

94,271 Total Income 95,807

Expenditure

46,260 Repairs and Maintenance 47,481

17,478 Supervision and Management 17,497

21,052 Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed Assets 91,278

642 Other Expenditure 1,502

1,247 Increase in Provision for Doubtful Debts 1,172

86,679 Total Expenditure 158,930

(7,592) 63,123

267 HRA Services share of Corporate and Democratic Core 238

925 1014 1,252

(6,400) Net Cost of HRA Services 64,375

      - (Gain) or Loss on disposal of HRA fixed assets       -

5,755 Interest Payable (including Amortisation of Premiums) 5,605

(759) Interest and Investment Income (763)

(561) Pensions Interest Costs and Expected Return on Pension Assets (101) 4,741

(1,965) (Surplus) or Deficit for the Year on HRA Services 69,116

u STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BALANCE

2007/2008 2008/2009
£000 £000

(1,965) Surplus on HRA Income and Expenditure Account 69,116

973 (68,981)

(992) 135

(3,106) Housing Revenue Account Surplus brought forward (4,098)

(4,098) Housing Revenue Account Surplus carried forward (3,963)

Net Cost of HRA Services per Authority Income and Expenditure 
Account

HRA Share of other amounts included in the whole authority Net Cost 
of Services but not specifically allocated to specific services
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Net Additional amounts required by statute to be debited or (credited) 
to the HRA Balance for the year (Note 1)

(Increase) or Decrease in Housing Revenue Account Balance



u HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT NOTES

1 Note to the Statement of Movement on the HRA Balances

2007/2008 2008/2009 2008/2009
£000 £000 £000

(21,052) Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed Assets (91,278)

238 338

      - (Gain) or Loss on disposal of HRA fixed assets       -

(1,819) (1,266)

(22,633) (92,206)

1,484 Employers Contributions payable to the Strathclyde Pension Fund 1,562

10,867 Loans Fund Principal 11,700

11,255 Capital Expenditure Funded by the HRA 9,963

23,606 23,225

973 (68,981)

2 Housing Stock
The Council was responsible for managing 37,105 houses during 2008/2009. These consist of :

House Numbers House Numbers
31 March 2008 31 March 2009

301 1 Apartment 300
6,664 2 Apartment 6,613

19,317 3 Apartment 19,093
10,176 4 Apartment 10,025
1,059 5 Apartment 1,045

29 Other 29
37,546 37,105

3 Rent Arrears

4 Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debt

5 Housing Revenue Account Surplus

6 Void Rents
The level of income lost from unlet council dwellings during 2008/2009 amounted to £1.458m (2007/2008 £1.477m).

The deficit for the year ended 31 March 2009 of £0.135m from the Housing Revenue Account has been added to the brought
forward surplus to give a cumulative surplus of £3.963m, which has been carried forward into the 2009/2010 financial year. 
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Items included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account but 
excluded from the Movement on HRA Balance for the Year

Net Charges made for Retirement Benefits in accordance with FRS17

Items not included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account 
but excluded from the Movement on HRA Balance for the Year

Net Additional amounts required by statute to be debited or 
(credited) to the HRA Balance for the year.

Property Types

Current rent arrears outstanding as at 31 March 2009 amounted to £1.525m .This represented 1.61% of rents paid during the year
(the comparative figures for the 2007/2008 year were £1.201m and 1.29% respectively).

The cumulative provision for bad and doubtful debts at 31 March 2009 amounted to £3.013m (£2.668m as at 31 March 2008).

Movements recognised under statutory provisions relating to Financial 
Instruments



u COUNCIL TAX INCOME STATEMENT

2007/2008 2008/2009
Actual Actual
£000 £000

137,227 Gross Council Tax levied and Contributions in Lieu 138,715
Less :

               - Council Tax Benefits (net of Government Grant)                -
14,900 Other Discounts and Reductions 15,082

3,676 Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 3,717
Add :

298 Prior Years  Community Charge 142
375 Prior Years Council Tax 726

119,324 Transfer to General Fund 120,784

u Nature of the Council Tax Charge

u The Calculation of the Council Tax Base
The Valuation Bands for the Council Tax  can be analysed as follows:

Number of Number of Disabled Discounts Discounts Total Ratio to Band  D
Band Dwellings Exemptions Relief (10% & 25%) ( 50% ) Dwellings Band  D Equivalent

A UNDER £27,000 54,231 1,710 (90) 6,659 199 45,753 6  :   9 30,502
B £27,000 to       £35,000 36,769 772 36 3,426 121 32,414 7  :   9 25,211
C £35,000 to       £45,000 18,049 312 57 1,483 70 16,127 8  :   9 14,335
D £45,000 to       £58,000 14,672 141 (32) 867 39 13,657 1 13,657
E £58,000 to       £80,000 14,508 116 82 594 46 13,670 11  :   9 16,708
F £80,000 to     £106,000 6,559 43 32 196 15 6,273 13  :   9 9,061
G £106,000 to     £212,000 2,323 9 25 59 8 2,222 15  :   9 3,703
H OVER £212,000 120 4 0 2 1 113 2 226

Total 113,403
Provision For Bad Debts at 3.25% 3,686

Council Tax Base 109,717

u The Council Tax Charge

£ per 
Dwelling

Council Tax Band A £732.00
Council Tax Band B £854.00
Council Tax Band C £976.00
Council Tax Band D £1,098.00
Council Tax Band E £1,342.00
Council Tax Band F £1,586.00
Council Tax Band G £1,830.00
Council Tax Band H £2,196.00
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The actual Council Tax is levied according to the base Band D charge, and weighted as detailed above. The charge for each Band for
2008/2009 was as follows:

The charge for each household is based upon the valuation banding to which the occupied dwelling is allocated by the Assessor. The
charge per Council Tax Band is calculated as a proportion of Band D - these proportions are determined by central government.

The Council Tax bill is reduced by 25% where a dwelling has only one occupant or by 10% for long-term empty properties and second
homes, and under certain circumstances 50% can be awarded. The property bandings are adjusted where the property is occupied by
disabled persons and total exemptions are available for certain categories of occupants.

Charges in respect of water and waste water are the responsibility of Scottish Water. The Council collects total monies and makes a
precept payment to the Water Authority. 

Valuation



u NON DOMESTIC RATES INCOME STATEMENT

2007/2008 2008/2009
£000 £000

112,870 Gross Rates Levied and Contributions In Lieu 118,200

Less :
16,298 Reliefs and Remissions 18,881

3 Payment of Interest 4
2,897 Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 2,979

93,672 Net Non-Domestic Rate Income 96,336

-               Prior Year Adjustments (see note below) -                        

93,672 Contribution to National Non-Domestic Rates Pool 96,336

24,384 Net Contribution from/ (to) National Non-Domestic Rates Pool 27,863

118,056 Amount due from National Rates Pool 124,199

Add :
(6) Adjustment for Years Prior to Introduction of the (3)

National Non-Domestic Rates Pool

118,050 Transfer to General Fund 124,196

u Analysis of Rateable Values as at 1 April 2008
Number Rateable Value

of Subjects £000

Industrial and Freight 2,446 86,464

Commercial Subjects
Shops (incl. Restaurants) 2,391 60,196
Offices 1,608 36,271
Hotels, Boarding Houses etc. 35 2,338
Others 1,473 28,002

Miscellaneous and Formula Valued Subjects 884 44,484

TOTAL 8,837 257,755

u Nature and Amount of Non-Domestic Rates Charge

u National Non-Domestic Rates Pool 

Non-Domestic Rates Statement

Description
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Non-Domestic Rates are a tax levied by local authorities on the occupiers of commercial property within their area, as distinct from a
charge for their use of services. The amount paid is determined by the rateable value placed upon the property by the Assessor,
multiplied by the Rate Poundage (Rate per £ of Rateable Value) announced each year by the Government.

The uniform business rate for 2008/2009 was set by the Scottish Government at 45.8p. A small business bonus scheme was
introduced from 1st April 2008 and will progressively reduce the rates burden for businesses with properties of which the combined
rateable value is £15,000 or less, and the scheme will be delivered in full by 2009. The relief is afforded in three bands, Band 1, up
to £8,000, Band 2, £8,001 to £10,000 and Band 3, £10,001 to £15,000. For 2008/09 the relief for Band 1 is 80%, Band 2 is 40% and
Band 3 is 20%.   This will increase to 100%, 50% and 25% respectfully for 2009/10 onwards.

The contribution to the National Non-Domestic Rates Pool shown above represents the value of non-domestic rates collected by the
Council and contributed through the pooling arrangements for government grant purposes. The sum due from the National Non-
Domestic Rates Pool represents the level of non-domestic rates distributed through the aggregate external finance mechanism.



u SUNDRY ACCOUNTS STATEMENT

u Summary Income and Expenditure  Account
2007/2008 2008/2009

£000 £000
Education Trust Funds

Income
88 Interest on Investments etc. 115

Expenditure
55 Grants, Prizes, Awards etc. 85

33 Surplus for the year 30

Other Sundry Trusts Funds

Income
5 Interest on Investments etc. 5

Expenditure
-                       Grants, Prizes, Awards etc. -                       

5 Surplus for the year 5

u Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2009
2007/2008 2008/2009 2008/2009

£000 £000 £000

Investments :-
72 Education Trust Funds 41
1 Sundry Trust Funds 1 42

73

1,326 Advances to Loans Fund 1,385

Current Assets
- Income Tax -

30 Sundry Debtors 36 36
30

Less : Current Liabilities
                            - Sundry Creditors                          -                          -

1,429 Net Assets 1,463

Financed by :-

Education Trust Funds
73 Capital 43

1,261 Revenue 1,320 1,363
1,334

Sundry Trust Funds
6 Capital 6

89 Revenue 94 100
95

1,429 1,463

The other Educational Trusts consist mainly of prize funds and bursaries for individual schools within the North Lanarkshire area
and are usually provided in the form of legacies of former school pupils or parents.

The Council invests these Trusts in high interest earning investments (subject to the original investment limitation parameters of
the original bequest) or with the Council's Loans Fund and earn interest accordingly. It is generally the case that only income
arising from these funds can be distributed each year thus ensuring that resources are available to meet their continuing
requirements.
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This section of the Financial Statements shows the summary of transactions relating to 31 Educational and 36 Sundry Trusts and
Endowments administered by the Council as trustees. These trust funds administered by the Council do not represent assets
available to the Council and as such have been excluded from the Balance Sheet of the Council. The summary of the balances
held on these Trusts is detailed below. The principal Funds are the Lanarkshire Education Trust at £430,099 and the Marshall
(Education) Trust at £893,926, which were established under the Education Endowments (Scotland) Acts 1928 to 1935 to provide
opportunities for educational advancement. These Funds are accessible for the whole of Lanarkshire and not just North
Lanarkshire and are administered by a joint committee with South Lanarkshire Council. The individual funds have not been subject
to separate audit or audit opinion. However, they have been considered in overall terms in the context of those materiality levels
which apply to the Council's Financial Statements.

The market value of all of the Educational Trusts Investments as at 31 March 2009 was £338,344 (£588,923 at 31 March 2008).



u GROUP INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT for the Year ended 31 March 2009

Net Net
Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure
2007/2008       Service 2008/2009 2008/2009 2008/2009

£000 £000 £000 £000

11,910 Central Services 23,673 8,614 15,059
4,964 Corporate and Democratic Core 6,036 -                    6,036

50,679 Cultural & Related Services 65,567 6,497 59,070
308,049 Education Services 389,401 13,644 375,757

30,602 Environmental Services 48,599 6,005 42,594
15,195 Fire & Rescue Service 16,275 -                    16,275

1,779 General Fund Housing Services 132,119 126,863 5,256
(6,670) Housing Revenue Account 159,653 96,582 63,071

3,606 Non Distributed Costs 1,592 -                    1,592
6,882 Planning & Development Services 60,073 16,841 43,232

30,458 Police Force 32,713 82 32,631
31,946 Roads & Transport Services 41,557 3,248 38,309

124,351 Social Work Services 197,781 34,228 163,553
2,224 Share of Operating Results of Associates 416 8,855 (8,439)

193 Share of Operating Results of Joint Ventures 24,339 23,869 470

616,168 Net Cost of Services 1,199,794 345,328 854,466

(442) Public/Private Partership Contributions -                    171 (171)
(161) Surpluses on Trading Undertakings not included 2,571 2,877 (306)

in Net Cost of Services
27,627 Interest Payable 27,240 -                    27,240

(804) Profit or Losses on Disposal of Assets 38 264 (226)
1,641            Share of Interest Payable of Associates and Joint Ventures 1,499 -                    1,499

(4,198) Interest and Investment Income -                    4,935 (4,935)
(1,625) -                    1,459 (1,459)

147 Share of Taxation on Group Entities 176 73 103
(10,388) -                    1,859 (1,859)

27,496          36,772 3,510 33,262

655,461 Net Operating Expenditure 1,268,090 360,476 907,614

380,090 Revenue Support Grant -                    462,596 462,596
118,050 Non-Domestic Rates -                    124,196 124,196
119,324 Council Tax -                    120,784 120,784

37,997 Group Deficit / (Surplus) for the Year 1,268,090 1,068,052 200,038

Share of Interest and Investment Income of Associates and 
Joint Ventures

Pension Interest Cost and Expected Return on Pension 
Assets
Share of Pension Interest Cost and Expected Return on 
Pension Assets of Associates & Joint Ventures
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Income from taxation and general government 
grants



u Reconciliation of the Single Entity Deficit to Group Deficit for the Year ended 31 March 2009

Net Net
Expenditure Expenditure
2007/2008 2008/2009

£000 £000

7,665 167,442

Add:

186 Deficit for the year arising from the Council's Subsidiaries 7,070

30,175 Deficit for the year arising from the Council's Share in Associates 25,094

(29) (Surplus) / Deficit for the year arising from the Council's Share in Joint Ventures 432

37,997 Group Deficit for the Year 200,038

u Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses for the Year ended 31 March 2009

This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the Group for the year.

2007/2008 2008/2009
£000 £000

37,997 Deficit  on the Group Income and Expenditure Account for the year 200,038

25,021 (Gain) / Loss arising from the revaluation of fixed assets (246,174)

(110,663) Actuarial Gain on pension assets and liabilities 149,326

(94,171) Any other gains and losses required to be included 25,791

(141,816) Total Recognised (gains) and losses for the year 128,981

This statement shows how the deficit on the Council's single entity Income and Expenditure Account for the year reconciles to 
the deficit for the year on the Group Accounts. 
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Deficit / (Surplus) on the Council's single entity Income and Expenditure Account for the 
year



Group Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2009

2007/2008 2008/2009 2008/2009
£000 £000 £000

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

OPERATIONAL ASSETS
747,215 Council Dwellings 749,478
678,817 Other Land and Buildings 792,702
35,707 Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 39,724

166,855 Infrastructure Assets 181,341
35,197 Community Assets 25,215 1,788,460

NON-OPERATIONAL ASSETS
107,354 Investment Property 76,915
63,614 Surplus Assets held for Disposal 57,231
2,273 Assets under Construction 10,674 144,820

1,837,032 1,933,280

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
15,444 Investment in Associate Companies & Joint Ventures 1,858

-                   LONG TERM DEBTORS 2,703

1,852,476 TOTAL LONG-TERM ASSETS 1,937,841

CURRENT ASSETS
837 Stores and Materials 1,034

67,972 Debtors (net of Bad Debt Provision) 53,668
77,789 Short Term Investments 35,551
1,706 Cash in Hand 5,842

148,304 96,095

CURRENT LIABILITIES
(19,470) Borrowing repayable on demand or within 12 months (34,021)

(102,786) Creditors (107,802)
(11,381) Bank Overdraft (10,710)

(133,637) (152,533)

1,867,143 TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,881,403

LONG & MEDIUM TERM LOANS
(432,485) Borrowing repayable after 12 months (392,990)

(233) DEFERRED LIABILITIES (123)

PROVISIONS
(425,200) Investment in Associate Companies (449,332)
(12,333) Equal Pay Provision (10,691)

(428) Provision for Tax on Social Work Incentive Scheme (159)
(460,182)

(97,342) GOVERNMENT GRANT AND OTHER CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS DEFERRED ACCOUNT (125,373)

(13,775) CONTRIBUTIONS UNAPPLIED ACCOUNT (6,986)

3,628 (135,755)

888,975 TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES 759,994

REPRESENTED BY:
47,814          Revaluation Reserve 226,288

-                   Group Revaluation Reserve 14,841
1,244,546 Capital Adjustment Account 1,122,474

-                   Available-for-Sale Financial Instruments Reserve -                   
(50,139) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (48,495)

-                   Capital Receipts Reserve -                   
3,628 Pension Reserve (135,755)
8,622 Insurance Fund 8,673

78 Repairs & Renewals Fund 2,884
(396,850) Group Income & Expenditure Reserve (456,716)

162 Other Reserves 1,643
27,016 General Fund Reserve 20,194
4,098 Housing Revenue Account Reserve 3,963

888,975 NET WORTH 759,994

The unaudited accounts were issued on 29 June 2009 and the audited accounts were authorised for issue on 23 September 2009.

Alistair Crichton,  CPFA
Executive Director of Finance and Customer Services

ASSET / (LIABILITY) RELATING TO DEFINED PENSION SCHEME
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u GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2007/2008 2008/2009 2008/2009
£000 £000 £000

72,457 Net Cash Inflow from Revenue Activities 78,868

Returns on Investments and Servicing of Finance
(26,244)   Interest Paid (26,302)

(9)   Interest element of finance lease rental payments (9)
4,050   Interest Received 4,922

(21,389)

50,254 57,479

Capital Expenditure and Financial Investment
(105,005)   Purchase of Fixed Assets (114,502)

30,859   Sale of Fixed Assets 13,443
12,102   Other Capital Receipts 254
24,990   Capital Grants Received 30,763

(37,054) (70,042)

13,200 NET CASH INFLOW BEFORE FINANCING (12,563)

2,701 Management of Liquid Resources 42,659

Financing
(42,530)   Repayment of amounts borrowed (38,641)

(41)   Capital element of finance lease payments (41)
15,330   New Loans Raised 13,393

(27,241) (25,289)

(11,340) Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 4,807
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Net Cash Inflow from Revenue Activities after Returns on 
Investments and Servicing of Finance



u NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

1 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

2 Combining Entities

Subsidiary Companies

Associate Companies

Joint Ventures

3 Nature of Combination

4 Financial Impact of Consolidation

5 Further Details on Consolidation

Strathclyde Joint Police  Board

Strathclyde Fire Joint Board

Strathclyde Concessionary Travel Scheme Joint Board

The most significant of the Joint Venture arrangements, as detailed within page 30 to the Accounts, namely Amey Roads (North
Lanarkshire) Ltd., Maintenance and Property Care Ltd and Saltire Facilities Management Ltd have been incorporated into the Group
Accounts. 

45

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires local authorities to consider their interests in all types of entities including
private companies and joint ventures. This also includes other statutory bodies such as Police and Fire Joint Boards where the discharge
of local government functions has been delegated from the constituent authorities under joint board arrangements.

The Council has adopted a materiality threshold of £250,000 in considering the basis of incorporation of these entities within the Group
Accounting Statements.

The Council has an interest in a number of Subsidiary and Associate Companies along with Joint Ventures. The accounting period for
most entities is 31 March 2009 with the only exceptions being in respect of Amey Roads (North Lanarkshire) Ltd. and Saltire Facilities
Management Ltd. both of whom report to 31 December 2008. The reason for this variation in reporting period is due to these companies
aligning their own accounting periods with the annual contractual period with the Council.

The overall effect of inclusion of these entities is to decrease both the Reserves and Net Assets by £440.232m or 36.7% representing the
Council's share of the combined deficit on the Pensions Schemes in operation within the Joint Boards. Given that both the Police and
Firefighters are unfunded schemes there are no attributable assets. However, the Scottish Government effectively underwrites these
liabilities through provision within the Revenue Support Grant mechanism, including the provision of revenue grants to meet the relative
impact on employer's pension costs. In effect, financing of police and fire pensions is raised in the year. The pensions are actually paid
and offset by recognition within the revenue stream from the Scottish Government.

The Council inherited its interest in the subsidiary companies following the reorganisation of local government in 1996. It is considered 
that these subsidiaries were consolidated on an acquisition basis. However, as no consideration was given for this interest, there is no 
goodwill involved in these instances. 

As detailed within page 28 of the Accounts, the Council has a 100% interest in four Subsidiary Companies and for the purposes of
consolidation and incorporation into the Group Accounts, recognition has been made of the Council's controlling interest in three of them:
Broadwood Stadium (Cumbernauld) Ltd, Campsies Centre (Cumbernauld) Ltd and Fusion Assets Ltd.

The Group Accounts also consolidate the financial results of seven of the Associate companies previously detailed within pages 29 to 30
of the Accounts - The Time Capsule (Monklands) Trust Ltd, North Lanarkshire Leisure Ltd., and the five Joint Board arrangements. 

In addition to these organisations the Council also has an interest in the North Lanarkshire Municipal Bank Ltd. The company’s principal
activities are the accepting of deposits and the investing of those funds with North Lanarkshire Council. The Directors of the Bank are all
elected Members of North Lanarkshire Council. At 31 March 2009, there were 8,442 accounts held within the Bank, with a total of
£29.590m on deposit. The Bank has total assets of £29.700m and of this sum £29.660m was invested with North Lanarkshire Council. No
financial benefit accrues to the Council as a result of its interest in the Bank, and it is not exposed to any financial liabilities. Although the
Bank has not been incorporated into these Group Accounts, within the main Accounts £19.660m of the £29.660m is shown within Current
Liabilities and the balance of £10.000m is included within Long & Medium Term Loans.

Due to the significant impact upon the reported figures of the Group Accounts further information in respect of the Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures outlined above can be summarised as follows:-

Strathclyde Joint Police Board is the statutory corporate body established under the Strathclyde Combined Police Area Amalgamation
Order 1975 and provides a comprehensive range of policing services on behalf of the 12 constituent local authorities in the West of
Scotland. During 2008/09 the Council contributed £32.631m or 12.19% of the Board's estimated running costs and its share of the net
liability on the balance sheet is £362.121m and is included within the Group Balance Sheet. The accounts of the Board are subject to
independent audit and can be obtained from the Treasurer to Strathclyde Joint Police Board, Glasgow City Chambers, Glasgow G2 1DU.  

This is the statutory body responsible for supervising the activities of the Strathclyde Fire & Rescue activities which provides fire and
emergency cover for the 12 constituent local authorities in the West of Scotland. The Council contributed £16.275m to the Board's
revenue costs in 2008/09 or 10.84% and has accounted for £73.696m as its representative share of the Net Balance Sheet Liabilities
within the Group Balance Sheet. The accounts of the Board are subject to independent audit scrutiny and are available from the
Treasurer to Strathclyde Fire Joint Board, Bothwell Road, Hamilton ML3 0EA.

This body comprises the 12 local authorities within the West of Scotland which oversees the operations of the concessionary fares
scheme for public transport within the area. The costs of the scheme are met by a combination of funding from the 12 constituent councils
and direct grant funding from the Scottish Government. From 1 April 2006 the roll-out of the national concessionary fares scheme has
seen a significant funding change with the vast majority of funding now coming directly from the Scottish Government. During 2008/09 the
Council contributed £0.341m or 13.5% to the annual running costs and accounted for £0.890m of the Net Balance Sheet Liabilities within
the Group Balance Sheet. The accounts of the Board are subject to independent audit and are available from the Treasurer to Strathclyde 
Concessionary Travel Scheme, Strathclyde Partnership for Transport, Consort House, 12 West George Street, Glasgow G2 1HN.



u NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

5 Further Details on Consolidation

Strathclyde Partnership for Transport

Lanarkshire Valuation Joint Board

2007/2008 
£m

2008/2009    
£m

North Lanarkshire Council has a 50% share of
Gross Income 3.496 3.735
Net Surplus (Deficit) 0.115 0.149
Fixed Assets           -           -
Current Assets 0.206 0.076
Liabilities due within one year (0.206) (0.076)
Retirement Benefit Liabilities 0.526 0.396
Capital and Revenue Reserves 0.526 (0.396)
Capital Commitments      -      -

The Time Capsule (Monklands) Trust Ltd.

2007/2008 
£m

2008/2009   
£m

North Lanarkshire Council has a 100% share of
Gross Income 3.946 4.114
Net Surplus (Deficit) 0.316 (0.103)
Fixed Assets 0.266 0.495
Current Assets 0.641 0.399
Liabilities due within one year (0.443) (0.425)
Retirement Benefit Asset / Liabilities 0.128 0.016
Capital and Revenue Reserves 0.592 0.485
Capital Commitments        -        -

Fusion Assets Ltd

2007/2008 
£m

2008/2009   
£m

North Lanarkshire Council has a 100% share of
Gross Income 0.284 0.369
Net Surplus (Deficit) 0.256 0.130
Fixed Assets -                       -
Current Assets 5.214 4.653
Liabilities due within one year (0.429) (0.357)
Retirement Benefit Liabilities         -        -
Capital and Revenue Reserves 1.729 1.419
Capital Commitments        -        -

This company was incorporated on 27 March 2006 and is limited by guarantee. Its main purpose is to promote urban regeneration and
economic development within North Lanarkshire. North Lanarkshire Council is the sole company member following the resignation of
Scottish Enterprise Lanarkshire (SEL) on 30 June 2008.

The Council is required to include the financial results of Fusion Assets Ltd as a subsidiary because it controls the majority of the
company voting rights and 100% of the equity capital. During 2008/2009 the Council accounted for all of the Net Assets on the Balance
Sheet of £1.418m within the Group Balance Sheet. The accounts of the company are subject to independent audit and are available from
the Executive Director of Finance and Customer Services, Civic Centre, Motherwell, ML1 1AB.

Strathclyde Partnership for Transport was formed on 1 April 2006 as successor to Strathclyde Passenger Transport Authority and
Strathclyde Passenger Transport Executive. It is one of seven Regional Transport Partnerships in Scotland and is responsible for
formulating the public transport policy for the 12 local authorities in the West of Scotland. The Council contributed £5.605m or 15.0% of
the Board's estimated running costs during 2008/09 and accounted for £24.715m of the net Balance Sheet Liabilities within the Group
Balance Sheet. The Accounts of the Board are subject to independent audit and are available from the Treasurer to Strathclyde
Partnership for Transport, Consort House, 12 West George Street, Glasgow G2 1HN.

The following disclosures are also required for the Time Capsule (Monklands) Trust Ltd. because the Council's interest exceeds the 25%
threshold for accounting purposes:- 

This body was formed in 1996 at local government reorganisation by an Act of Parliament and is responsible for the maintenance of the
electoral, council tax and non-domestic rates registers for both North and South Lanarkshire Councils. The Board's running costs are met
equally by the two Councils and during 2008/2009 North Lanarkshire Council contributed £1.802m towards these estimated revenue costs
and accounted for £0.198m of the Net Balance Sheet Assets within the Group Balance Sheet. The accounts of the Board are subject to
independent audit and are available from the Treasurer to Lanarkshire Valuation Joint Board, Council Offices, Almada Street, Hamilton
ML3 0AB.
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The following disclosures are also required for the Lanarkshire Valuation Joint Board because the Council's interest exceeds the 25%
threshold for accounting purposes:- 

This is a charitable company established in June 2002 whose objective is to provide management services for the operation of the Time
Capsule, a leisure facility owned by the Council. The charity is entirely independent of the Council under law and taxation and the council
has no shares or ownership in the charity. The charity does not trade for profit and any surplus generated is applied solely to its
continuation and development. The Council has no legal obligation to meet accumulated deficits of the charity.

The Council is required to include the financial results of the Time Capsule (Monklands) Trust Ltd. as an associate because it has a
"significant influence" over the financial and operating policies of the charity. During 2008/2009 the Council contributed £1.458m or 35%
of the running costs and accounted for the entirety of the Net Assets on the Balance Sheet of £0.488m within the Group Balance Sheet.
The accounts of the Trust are subject to independent audit and are available from the Executive Director of Finance and Customer
Services, Civic Centre, Motherwell, ML1 1AB.



u NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

5 Further Details on Consolidation

North Lanarkshire Leisure Ltd.

2007/2008 
£m

2008/2009   
£m

North Lanarkshire Council has a 100% share of
Gross Income 14.228 15.493
Net Surplus (Deficit) actuarial gain / (loss) on defined benefit pension scheme 0.602 0.724
Fixed Assets 0.306 0.367
Current Assets 3.434 3.814
Liabilities due within one year (2.675) (2.622)
Retirement Benefit Liabilities         -         -
Capital and Revenue Reserves 1.064 0.895
Capital Commitments        -         -

Amey Roads (North Lanarkshire) Ltd.

2007/2008 
£m

2008/2009    
£m

North Lanarkshire Council has a 33% share of
Gross Income 15.264 16.283
Net Surplus before Taxation 0.400 0.938
Taxation (0.120) (0.267)
Net Surplus after Taxation 0.280 0.671
Fixed Assets       - -
Current Assets 6.670 8.447
Liabilities due within one year (6.005) (7.669)
Liabilities due after one year or more      - -
Capital and Revenue Reserves 0.665 0.778
Capital Commitments            - -

Maintenance and Property Care Ltd.

2007/2008 
£m

2008/2009    
£m

North Lanarkshire Council has a 33% share of
Gross Income 37.619 38.689
Net Surplus (Loss)  before Taxation (0.566) (2.312)
Taxation (0.320) 0.220
Net Surplus (Loss) after Taxation (0.886) (2.092)
Fixed Assets 0.194 0.113
Current Assets 8.042 5.814
Liabilities due within one year (11.078) (12.359)
Retirement Benefit Assets / (Liabilities) 4.716 3.456
Capital and Revenue Reserves 1.874 (2.976)
Capital Commitments           -           -

This company was established in 2001 as a joint venture mechanism whereby Maintenance & Property Care Ltd. assumed responsibility
for the delivery of the Council's housing and property maintenance arrangements. The Council owns a minority (33%) share in the joint
venture company which does not carry any voting rights but otherwise ranks pari passu with other shares.

For the year ended 31 March 2009 North Lanarkshire Council entered into payments of £37.326m or 96.48% of the company's annual
turnover. Net liabilities of £2.976m have been recognised within the Group Balance Sheet. 

The following disclosures are also required for Maintenance and Property Care Ltd. because the Council's interest exceeds the 25%
threshold for accounting purposes:- 

This joint venture was established in 2000 under an agreement whereby the company assumed responsibility for the Council's roads and
lighting maintenance contract works. The Council owns a minority (33%) share in the joint venture company which does not carry any
voting rights but otherwise ranks pari passu with other shares.  

This is a charitable company established in August 2006 whose objective is to provide management services for the operation of the
Council's leisure facilities (excluding Broadwood and The Time Capsule). The charity is entirely independent of the Council under law and
taxation and the Council has no shares or ownership in the charity. The charity does not trade for profit and any surplus generated is
applied solely to its continuation and development. The Council has no legal obligation to meet accumulated deficits of the charity.

The Council is required to include the financial results of North Lanarkshire Leisure Ltd. as an associate because it has a "significant
influence" over the financial and operating policies of the charity. During 2008/2009 the Council contributed £8.258m or 56% of the
running costs and accounted for the entirety of the Net Assets on the Balance Sheet of £0.895m within the Group Balance Sheet. The
accounts of the Trust are subject to independent audit and are available from the Executive Director of Finance and Customer Services,
Civic Centre, Motherwell, ML1  1AB.

For the year ended 31 December 2008 North Lanarkshire Council entered into payments of £15.012m or 92.19% of the company's
annual turnover. During 2008/2009 the Council accounted for 33% of the Net Assets on the Balance Sheet within the Group Balance
Sheet. 

The following disclosures are also required for the North Lanarkshire Leisure Ltd. because the Council's interest exceeds the 25%
threshold for accounting purposes:- 
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The following disclosures are also required for Amey Roads (North Lanarkshire) Limited because the Council's interest exceeds the 25%
threshold for accounting purposes:- 



u NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

5 Further Details on Consolidation

Saltire Facilities Management Ltd.

2007/2008 
£m

2008/2009   
£m

North Lanarkshire Council has a 33% share of
Gross Income 15.039 16.639
Net Surplus (Loss)  before Taxation 0.309 0.541
Taxation -                -
Net Surplus (Loss) after Taxation 0.309 0.382
Fixed Assets 0.075 0.211
Current Assets 3.060 3.377
Liabilities due within one year (2.520) (2.931)
Liabilities due after one year or more    - -
Capital and Revenue Reserves 0.615 0.657
Capital Commitments    - -

6 Group Cash Flow Statement

Deficit for the Year (200,038)

Non Cash Transactions
Contributions from (to) Reserves 1,753
Items relating to Loans Fund 213
Other Non Cash Items (1,344)
Inter-company / consolidation adjustments 29,494
Adjustments relating to Capital Charges 213,746 243,862

Items on an Accruals Basis
Increase in Stocks & WIP (195)
Decrease in Debtors 8,681
Increase in Creditors 5,169 13,655

Net Cash Inflow from Revenue Operations 57,479

7 Operational Assets Valuation

This joint venture was formed in 2001 under an agreement whereby Saltire Facilities Management Ltd assumed responsibility for the
Council's gas heating contract works. The Council owns a minority (33%) share in the joint venture company which does not carry any
voting rights but otherwise ranks pari passu with other shares.  

For the year ended 31 December 2008 North Lanarkshire Council entered into payments of £12.461m or 74.9% of the company's annual
turnover. During 2008/2009 the Council accounted for 33% of of the Net Assets on the Balance Sheet within the Group Balance Sheet. 

The Strathclyde Partnership for Transport financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention, as all land and
buildings are reported at cost less accumulated depreciation. This is an exception to the accounting policy for operational assets in the
Group Balance Sheet.
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The overall net deficit for the year of £200.038m can be reconciled to the operating activities net cash inflow of £57.479m as follows:

The impact of the incorporation of the subsidiary companies within the Group Cash Flow Statement is to increase the positive movement
in the net cash position by £4.345m which represents the fluctuation in the operating circumstances within both The Campsies Centre
(Cumbernauld) Ltd and Broadwood Stadium (Cumbernauld) Ltd and inclusion of Fusion Assets Ltd cash balances in the consolidated
Group Cash Flow Statement.

The following disclosures are also required for Saltire Facilities Management Ltd. because the Council's interest exceeds the 25%
threshold for accounting purposes:- 



 RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Authority's Responsibilities

The authority is required :

to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.

The Executive Director of Finance and Customer Services' Responsibilities

In preparing this statement of accounts the Executive Director of Finance and Customer Services has :

selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently.

made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent.

complied with the Code.

The Executive Director of Finance and Customer Services has also :

kept proper accounting records which were up to date.

taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

Alistair Crichton, CPFA
Executive Director of Finance and Customer Services
23 September 2009

The Executive Director of Finance and Customer Services  is responsible for the preparation of the authority's statement 
of accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA / LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in Great Britain (the Code).

to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the 
responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority that officer is the Executive Director of Finance and 
Customer Services.
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The Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2009, and 
its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2009.



STATEMENT ON THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

comprehensive budgeting systems;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance; and

clearly defined capital expenditure guidelines.

My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control is informed by:

the work of the Council's internal auditors as described above;

The Council continued to review its internal financial control arrangements during the year.

Alistair Crichton, CPFA
Executive Director of Finance and Customer Services
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the work of managers within the Council who have responsibility for the development and 
maintenance of the financial control framework;

comments made by the Council's external auditors in their management letters and other 
reports; and

reports issued by other review agencies such as HM Inspectorate of Education, the Care 
Commission and Communities Scotland.

The Council has an internal audit service, which operates to standards defined in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in
Local Government. The work of the internal audit service is informed by an analysis of the risk to which the Council is exposed,
and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The Audit and Governance Panel approved the annual internal audit
plan for 2008/2009. At least annually, the Council's Audit Manager provides me with a report on internal audit activity in the
Council, which includes the Audit Manager's independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's system of
internal control, together with recommendations for improvement, where necessary.

These arrangements were in place for the year ended 31 March 2009 and up to the date of the approval of the accounts.

This statement is given in respect of the financial statements of North Lanarkshire Council for the year ended 31 March 2009. The
statement does not cover the other bodies whose activities have now been incorporated into the Group Accounts. The Council
has placed reliance on the contents of the individual bodies' Statement of Internal Control and on the Audit Manager's Annual
Report, whilst taking into account the findings of relevant external audit and other external review reports.

With respect to North Lanarkshire Council I acknowledge my responsibility for ensuring that an effective system of internal
financial control is maintained and operated in connection with the resources at the Council's disposal.

The system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded, that
transactions are authorised and properly recorded and that material error or irregularities are either prevented or would be
detected within a timely period.

The Council's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information, financial
regulations, administrative procedures (including segregation of duties), management supervision, and a system of delegation
and accountability. Managers within the Council are responsible for undertaking the development and maintenance of the system.
In particular the system includes:

regular reviews of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial 
performance against forecasts and targets;



u Financial Performance 2008/2009 Financial Year

Actual Net Estimated Net
Summary Expenditure Expenditure Variance

£000 £000 £000

Environmental Services 95,309 96,597 1,288        
Learning & Leisure Services 369,006 368,662 (344)         
Finance & Customer Services 28,233 28,930 697
Corporate Services 29,288 29,260 (28)           
Housing & Social Work Services 167,761 171,144 3,383
Chief Executive's 8,828 8,903 75
Total Direct Cost of Services 698,425 703,496 5,071

PPP/Trading Account Surpluses (2,601)         (2,251)              350           
Joint Boards 56,654 56,513 (141)         
General Fund Services 752,478 757,758 5,280

Interest on Revenue Balances (2,000)         (2,000)              -                
Reversal of Capital Charges (33,692)       (33,692)            -                
Change Management Programme 420              420                  -                
Repairs & Renewals Fund 4,250           4,250               -                
Removal of Gross Costs of Central Departments (50,566)       (50,366)            200           
Transfer from Pension Reserve (Trading FRS17) (1,583)         (1,583)              -                
Loan Charges 41,279         42,700             1,421        

710,586 717,487 6,901

Financed by :

Revenue Support Grant (462,588)     (462,588)         -                
Non-Domestic Rates (124,199)     (124,199)         -                
Council Tax (119,916)     (119,205)         711           
Collection of Local Tax Arrears (868)            (1,000)              (132)         

Specific Project Areas carried forward to 2009/2010 3,807           (3,807)      

Deficit for the year 6,822 10,495 3,673        

This page provides a representation of the details contained within the Income and Expenditure Statement in order to provide
details of meaningful variances in the General Fund operational structure of the Council.

Amount to be met by Government Grants and Local Taxpayers

The accounting rules require a number of entries within the year end accounts with regard to the treatment of capital charges,
financing costs, insurance costs and central support services. The analysis above retains these costs within individual service
budgets in order to maintain individual service responsibility and accountability for the resources employed.

The most significant factor in this year's positive movement of £3.673m relates to a combination of improved financial
management in areas such as local tax collection and debt management, together with underspends in service expenditure.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of North Lanarkshire Council and the
Accounts Commission for Scotland

We certify that we have audited the financial statements of North Lanarkshire Council and its
group for the year ended 31 March 2009 under Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland)
Act 1973. The financial statements comprise the Income and Expenditure Account, Statement
of Movement on the General Fund Balance, Statement of Total Recognised Gains and
Losses, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement, the Housing Revenue Account Income
and Expenditure Account, Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance, the Council Tax
Income Statement, the Non-Domestic Rate Income Statement and the related notes and the
Statement of Accounting Policies together with the Group Accounts. These financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out within them.

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 123
of the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland, we do not
undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to
third parties. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Respective responsibilities of the Responsible Financial Officer and the auditor

The Responsible Financial Officer’s responsibilities for preparing the financial statements in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: A Statement of Recommended Practice
(the 2008 SORP) are set out in the Statement of Responsibilities for the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) as required
by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission.

We report our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the 2008 SORP, of the
financial position of the Council and its group and its income and expenditure for the year,
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973.

We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Council has not kept proper accounting records, or
if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We review whether the Statement on the System of Internal Financial Control reflects
compliance with the 2008 SORP, and we report if, in our opinion, it does not. We are not
required to consider whether this statement covers all risk and controls, or form an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Council’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control
procedures.

We read the other information published with the financial statements, and consider whether it
is consistent with the audited financial statements. This other information comprises only the
Foreword to the Accounts. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of
any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our
responsibilities do not extend to any other information.
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Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973 and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts
Commission. Our audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the Responsible Financial Officer in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are most
appropriate to the Council’s and its group’s circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements:

 give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and the 2008 SORP, of the financial position of North Lanarkshire Council and its group
as at 31 March 2009 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Kintyre House
209 West George Street
Glasgow
G2 2LW

23 September 2009

Note: The maintenance and integrity of the North Lanarkshire Council website is the
responsibility of the Council; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any
changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially
presented on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of the financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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